
                                                        
  

PPHHIILLAADDEELLPPHHIIAA  RREEDDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  AAUUTTHHOORRIITTYY  
  

11223344  MMAARRKKEETT  SSTTRREEEETT,,  1166TTHH  FFLLOOOORR  
  PPHHIILLAADDEELLPPHHIIAA,,  PPAA    1199110077    
  

BBOOAARRDD  MMEEEETTIINNGG  
WWEEDDNNEESSDDAAYY,,  FFEEBBRRUUAARRYY  99,,  22002222  

  
EExxeeccuuttiivvee  SSeessssiioonn  ––  33::3300  PP..MM..  

OOppeenn  SSeessssiioonn  ––  44::0000  PP..MM.. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 

APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES  
        

Meeting of January 12, 2021 
           

 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE       Page 

 
(a) Conveyance of Title of City Properties Through the   (1) 

Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the  
Philadelphia Land Bank  

 
(b) Conveyance of Title of Philadelphia Redevelopment   (5) 

Authority Properties to the Philadelphia Land Bank  
 
(c) Housing Preservation Loan Program     (9) 

(i) Amendment to Resolution No. 2018-56,  
Adopted on July 11, 2018  

(ii) Authorization to Enter into an Agreement  
for Professional Services with Republic First Bank 
d/b/a Republic Bank  

(iii) Authorization to Enter Into Amendments to the  
Agreements for Professional Services with  
Univest Bank and Trust Co. and Clarifi 

 
(d) Gallery Mall Project        (18) 

First Amendment to License Agreement with Keystone 
Philadelphia Properties, L.P., for the Pedestrian Bridge 
Located Between 10th and 11th Streets Above Filbert Street  
 

 
 
 
 



AGENDA 
Board Meeting of February 09, 2022 
Page -2- 

 
 

II. DEVELOPMENT  
 

624 S. 13th Street L.L.C.      (23) 
  614-26 S. 13th Street including 1306-10 Kater  

Street and 1309-13 Bainbridge Street 
Selection of Redeveloper and Approval of  
Ground Lease Agreement and Redevelopment 
Agreement 
 

 



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 1 

 PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 
 

***** 
 
Prior to the start of the meeting, Mr. Harmon made the announcement that, due to the 
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority's continued office closure due to the Covid-19 pandemic, 
today's Board meeting is being held electronically via an authorized communication device, is 
open to public attendees, and open for public comment.  The Board meeting is being recorded 
and questions and comments can be entered using the Question & Answer box at the lower right-
hand corner of the screen.  Questions and/or comments will be read out loud and answered if 
needed.  Mr. Harmon stated that he provided his email address to the public for any issues with 
submitting questions and/or comments and for any issues with accessing the Board meeting 
remotely.  Mr. Harmon further stated there were no public comments received prior to the 
meeting.   
 
 
***MR. HARMON ASKED EVERYONE TO PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS A 
QUESTION AND ANSWER PORTAL FOR PUBLIC ATTENDEES OF THIS BOARD 
MEETING.  THE PUBLIC ATTENDANCE LIST AND THE SUBMITTED QUESTIONS 
AND ANSWERS, IF ANY, WILL BE ATTACHED TO THE MEETING MINUTES. 
  

***** 
 
A virtual meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority was held 
on Wednesday, January 12, 2022, commencing at 4:00 P.M., pursuant to proper notices being made. 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
None.  
 
 
ROLL CALL  
 
The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Anne Fadullon, Chair; James 
Cuorato, Vice Chair; Sabrina Maynard, Treasurer; and Maria Duque-Buckley, 2nd Vice Chair 
and Assistant Secretary.   
 
The following member of the Board of Directors was not present:  Michael Rashid, Secretary.  
  
The following assigned staff were present:  Ryan Harmon, Esq., Jojy Varghese, Angel 
Rodriguez, Jessie Lawrence, Robert LaBrum, Tracy Pinson-Reviere, Todd Hestand, Mathen 
Pullukattu, and Elizabeth Bonaccorso.   
 

1



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 2 

Also in attendance:  Jamila Davis, DHCD; Jason Templet, Allison Weiss, Brent Howard, 
Roderick Ward, Oluwafemi Adetiba, Raina Poonam, Erin Jay, Jayme (name provided), Deborah 
Willis, Guy Sheets, Nicole Hostettler, Megan McCoy, Trang Balchunas, Eric Balchunas, 
Turtlebug (name provided), Sophia Fox, Beatrice (name provided), Hawthorne Neighborhood 
(name provided), Tim Fisher, Julie Stapleton Carroll, Vivek Allada, Ashish Patil, Yvonne 
Haskins, Michael Wilkins, Tom Copestick, Michelle Lewis, Bryon (name provided), Erin 
DelBaggio and Richard Dickson.  

 
 
MINUTES 
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion to approve the minutes of the Board meeting December 8, 
2021. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the minutes of December 8, 2021, were approved. 
 

 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE  
 
Mr. Harmon presented "Item I(a) – Appointment of the Board of Directors of RT 
HeadHouse Development Corporation" in substance consistent with the attached Fact 
Sheet hereto.  
 
Board Action 
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution. Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01 
 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING DIRECTORS TO RT HEADHOUSE DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 
 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority, that the following 
individuals are appointed to serve as directors of RT HeadHouse Development Corporation for a 
term of one (1) year beginning February 10, 2022, or until such time as the Authority shall 
terminate any such appointment: 

 
    Ryan Ambrose  
    David Thomas  

Darren Williams 
Alberta Benn 
Mathen Pullukattu 

2



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 3 

     
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with 
the advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable 
to carry out its purposes and intents. 

 
 

Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Buckley, and Ms. 
Maynard. 
 

 
 
Mr. Harmon presented "Item I(b) – Third Amendment to Cooperation Agreement – City of 
Philadelphia, acting through its Department of Public Property; 400 N. Broad Street" in 
substance consistent with the attached Fact Sheet hereto.  
 
Additional Comments and Discussion  
 
Ms. Maynard recused herself because of a potential conflict of interest.  Ms. Fadullon stated this 
would be noted for the record.  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-02 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A THIRD AMENDEMENT TO COOPERATION 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AND THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, ACTING THROUGH ITS DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC PROPERTY, FOR THE 400 NORTH BROAD STREET PROJECT 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2017-57, adopted by the Philadelphia 
Redevelopment Authority (the "Authority") on August 9, 2017, the Authority entered into a 
Cooperation Agreement dated October 16, 2017 (the "Cooperation Agreement") with the City of 
Philadelphia, acting through its Department of Public Property (the "City"), authorizing the 
Authority to act as agent for the City with respect to securing a consultant to represent the City with 
the oversight, analysis and monitoring of construction at the properties located at 400 N. Broad 
Street (the "Broad Street Property") and 1501 Callowhill Street (the "Callowhill Street 
Property") (the Broad Street Parcel and the Callowhill Street Parcel, together, the "Properties"), 

3



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 4 

which are being developed by 400 North Broad Partners, L.P. ("Landlord") and will be delivered 
as a turnkey project for the City to occupy.  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution 2018-01, adopted by the Authority on January 10, 
2018, the Authority and the City entered into a First Amendment to Cooperation Agreement (the 
"First Amendment") dated October 15, 2018, wherein the Authority and the City agreed to expand 
the scope of services to be performed by the Authority on behalf of or as agent for the City under 
the Cooperation Agreement. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority and the City also entered into a Second Amendment to 
Cooperation Agreement (the "Second Amendment") dated August 4, 2020, made effective October 
17, 2018, wherein the Authority and City agreed to mutually exercise the Renewal Terms as set 
forth in Paragraph 2.1 of the Cooperation Agreement, as previously amended, such that the term of 
the Cooperation Agreement as provided in Paragraph 2.1 of the Cooperation Agreement, as 
previously amended, was extended to October 16, 2021 (herein, the "Term"). 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority and the City would like to again amend the Cooperation 
Agreement, as previously amended by the First Amendment and Second Amendment, to extend the 
Term for an additional twelve (12) months, effective as of October 16, 2021. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority will continue to perform all other Services as defined in the 
Cooperation Agreement, as previously amended, and the City will continue to be responsible for 
payment of all costs incurred by the Authority under the Cooperation Agreement, as previously 
amended, and the City will continue to pay the Authority a fixed administrative fee of eight 
percent (8%) of all costs incurred for its services. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority that the Redevelopment Authority is authorized to execute a Third Amendment to 
Cooperation Agreement with the City whereby the Term of the Cooperation Agreement, as 
previously amended, will be extended for an additional twelve (12) months, effective as of 
October 16, 2021. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, the preparation, execution and delivery of all documentation 
necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Deputy Executive 
Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the 
advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to 
carry out its purposes and intents.  
 

 
Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, and Ms. Buckley. 
 
One (1) abstention:  Ms. Maynard. 
 

4



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 5 

 
 
Mr. Harmon presented "Item I(c) - Approval of Grant Agreement ($500,000) with the 
Philadelphia Housing Authority" in substance consistent with the attached Fact Sheet 
hereto.  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-03 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE APPROVAL OF A GRANT IN AN AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $500,000 TO THE PHILADELPHIA HOUSING AUTHORITY FOR 
THE PURPOSES OUTLINED IN THE CHOICE NEIGHBORHOODS 
IMPLEMENTATION GRANT AGREEMENT 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("Authority"), that 
authorization is hereby given to enter into a Grant Agreement with the Philadelphia Housing 
Authority ("PHA") wherein the Authority will grant funds in an amount not to exceed Five 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) to PHA to be used by PHA for the purposes outlined in 
the Choice Neighborhoods Implementation Grant Agreement (Grant Number 
PA3A518CNG113) dated December 17, 2014 (the "Choice Grant Agreement"), to be utilized 
solely to assist in the creation of homeownership opportunities for (i) low-income residents of 
public and/or assisted housing residents of the North Central Neighborhood (as defined in the 
Choice Grant Agreement) and (ii) former residents of the Norris Apartments housing 
developments, and (iii) to low-income residents of public and/or assisted housing residents in the 
City of Philadelphia ("City"), and (iv) other low-income people in the City. 

 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 

documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with 
the advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable 
to carry out its purposes and intents. 
 
 
Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Buckley, and Ms. Maynard. 
 

 
 

5



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 6 

Mr. Lawrence presented "Item I(d) – Conveyance of Title of City Properties Through the 
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Philadelphia Land Bank" in substance 
consistent with the attached Fact Sheet hereto.  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF TITLE FROM THE CITY OF 
PHILADELPHIA TO VARIOUS PROPERTIES AND CONVEYANCE OF SUCH 
PROPERTIES BY THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO THE 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 
 

WHEREAS, Act 153 of 2012, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2101, et seq. (the "Land Bank Act") 
authorized the City of Philadelphia ("City") to create a land bank in accordance with the Land 
Bank Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City, in Bill No. 130156-A (approved December 18, 2013), authorized 

the creation of the Philadelphia Land Bank and provided for its appointment, powers and duties; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 16-705 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the City's 

Commissioner of Public Property to convey real property to the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority ("Authority"), without consideration, for subsequent transfer to the Philadelphia Land 
Bank; and 

 
WHEREAS, under Section 2109 of Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2109(d)(3), a 

redevelopment authority, with the consent of the local governing body and without a 
redevelopment contract, may convey title to certain redevelopment authority property to a land 
bank; and 
 

WHEREAS, the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this Resolution have been 
deemed surplus property by the City and the transfer of such properties to the Authority for 
subsequent transfer to the Philadelphia Land Bank will promote the public purposes for which 
the City created the Philadelphia Land Bank.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority, that authorization is hereby given to the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to 
accept title from the City of Philadelphia to those properties identified on Exhibit "A," hereto, 
and for the conveyance and preparation, execution, acknowledgment and delivery of deeds to the 
Philadelphia Land Bank, without consideration, pursuant to Section 2109 of the Land Bank Act, 
68 Pa. C.S.A. §2109(d)(3), and Chapter 16-700 of the Philadelphia Code. 

 

6



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 7 

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with 
the advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable 
to carry out its purposes and intents. 
 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

1st Council District Properties 
 
731 Mercy Street 
 
2nd Council District Properties 
 
1537 S. Lambert Street 
1514 S. Opal Street 
1520 S. Opal Street 
3036 Titan Street 
2008 Wilder Street 
1306 S. 28th Street 
 
3rd Council District Properties  
 
3851 Aspen Street 
3855 Aspen Street 
3732 Haverford Avenue 
3825 Fairmount Avenue 
3605 Melon Street 
3607 Melon Street 
3832 Melon Street 
3858 Mount Vernon Street 
614 N. Shedwick Street 
3832 Wallace Street 
3830 Wallace Street 
708 N. 34th Street 
709 N. 35th Street 
676 N. 36th Street 
681 N. 37th Street 
740 N. 38th Street 
747 N 39th Street 
 
5th Council District Properties 
 
1403 N. 17th Street 
1409 N. 17th Street 

7



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 8 

1412 N. 17th Street 
1415 N. 17th Street 
1416 N. 17th Street 
1421 N. 17th Street 
1435 N. 17th Street 
1441 N. 17th Street 
1624 Jefferson Street 
 
8th Council District Properties 
 
4635 Germantown Avenue 
 
 
Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Buckley, and Ms. 
Maynard. 
 

 
 
Mr. Lawrence presented "Item I(e) – Conveyance of Title of Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority Properties to the Philadelphia Land Bank" in substance consistent with the 
attached Fact Sheet hereto.  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-05 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN PROPERTIES 
OWNED BY THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO THE 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 
 

WHEREAS, Act 153 of 2012, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2101, et seq. (the "Land Bank Act") 
authorized the City of Philadelphia ("City") to create a land bank in accordance with the Land 
Bank Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City, in Bill No. 130156-A (approved December 18, 2013), authorized 

the creation of the Philadelphia Land Bank and provided for its appointment, powers and duties; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, under Section 2109 of Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2109(d)(3), a 

redevelopment authority, with the consent of the local governing body and without a 
redevelopment contract, may convey title to certain redevelopment authority property to a land 
bank; and 

8



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 9 

 
WHEREAS, the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this Resolution which are owned 

by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("Authority") qualify for transfer from the 
Authority to the Philadelphia Land Bank as provided by Section 2109 of the Land Bank Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the transfer of the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this Resolution to 
the Philadelphia Land Bank will promote the public purposes for which the City created the 
Philadelphia Land Bank; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 

Authority, that authorization is hereby given to the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to 
convey title to those properties identified on Exhibit "A" hereto to the Philadelphia Land Bank, 
and for the preparation, execution, acknowledgment and delivery of deeds to the Philadelphia 
Land Bank, without consideration, pursuant to Section 2109 of Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 
2109(d)(3), and to obtain the appropriate councilmanic action. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with 
the advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable 
to carry out its purposes and intents. 
 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 
 
2 n d  Counci l  District  Propert ies  
 
2609-27 Sears  St ree t  
3014-26 Whar ton  Stree t  
1308 S .  26 t h  S t ree t  
1310 S .  26 t h  S t ree t  
1312 S .  26 t h  S t ree t  
1314 S .  26 t h  S t ree t  
 
 
3 r d  Counci l  Dis tr ic t  Propert ies  
 
3713 Brandywine  Stree t  
3835 Brandywine  Stree t  
3842 Olive  St ree t  
3841 Melon St reet  
616  N.  Shedwick  St ree t  
708  N.  Shedwick  St ree t  
710  N.  Shedwick  St ree t  
714  N.  Shedwick  St ree t  
3405 Wallace  Street  

9



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 10 

682 N.  33rd Street  
705  N.  35th  Street  
705  N.  35th  Street  
 
 
5 t h  Counci l  District  Propert ies   
 
1900 Monument  Street  
1902 Monument  Street  
1620 N.  Sydenham Street  
1622 N.  Sydenham Street  
1624 N.  Sydenham Street  
1801 N.  31s t  S t ree t  
1802-10 N.  31s t  S t reet  
1819 N.  31s t  S t ree t  
1821 N.  31s t  S t ree t  
1825 N.31s t  S t ree t   
1827-37 N.  31s t  S t reet  
1841-43 N.  31s t  S t reet  
 
 
Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Buckley, and Ms. 
Maynard. 
 

 
 
Mr. Rodriguez asked Ms. Fadullon to address the Board.  Ms. Fadullon invited Mr. Rodriguez to 
speak.  Mr. Rodriguez stated the next two (2) items that are being presented to the Board seek 
authorization for the issuance of Certificates of Completion for the respective projects.  Mr. 
Rodriguez wanted to call the Board members attention to these items because both were resolved 
by the Board for disposition respectively in 2015 and 2016.   
 
Mr. Rodriguez stated that as the items are presented, you will see that there were issues involving 
economic opportunity levels and monitoring as well as construction and design changes.  Mr. 
Rodriguez stated he want to inform the Board that Land Management and PRA are operating 
differently and have implemented compliance measures and increased our level of coordination 
with the compliance unit responsible for monitoring Economic Opportunity Plans ("EOP") and 
goals.  Mr. Rodriguez stated staff monitors projects more closely in an effort to prevent these 
types of issues from having to come back to the Board for approval.  Mr. Rodriquez explained 
that these issues have been addressed going forward but that staff is trying to clean up some 
older projects.  
 
Mr. Rodriguez stated that new procedures were implemented in 2019 to address these concerns 
and avoid future issues with compliance and that staff has been very active in monitoring 
projects and addressing developers when they fall short of EOP goals and make construction and 
design changes.   
 

10



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 11 

DEVELOPMENT   
 
Mr. Lawrence presented "Item II(a) – Certificate of Completion for 45 S. 44th Street" in 
substance consistent with the attached Fact Sheet hereto. 
 
Additional Comments and Discussion  
 
Ms. Fadullon stated is glad to hear staff is taking very intentional steps so that this issue can be 
avoided moving forward.  The Board has been doing this cleanup for awhile and has been difficult 
for the Board to approve these Certificates of Completion when developers do not meet compliance, 
particularly on EOP goals.  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF 
COMPLETION FOR 46 S. 44TH STREET, LOCATED IN THE 45TH AND SANSOM 
REDEVELOPMENT AREA, 45TH AND SANSOM URBAN RENEWAL AREA 
 

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("Authority") entered into a 
Redevelopment Agreement (the "Redevelopment Agreement") with 4644 South L.P. 
("Developer"), dated November 24, 2015, for the development of 46 S. 44th Street (the 
"Property"); 
 

WHEREAS, the Property has been developed in accordance with the Redevelopment 
Area Plan for the 45th and Sansom Redevelopment Area and the Urban Renewal Plan for the 45th 
and Sansom Urban Renewal Area; however, the Developer has changed the scope of the project 
from a three (3) story building with three (3) two-bedroom units to a four (4) story building with 
four (4) two-bedroom units, pilot house and exterior material change;  

 
WHEREAS, the Developer has failed to meet its Economic Opportunity Plan ("EOP") 

goals and Authority staff further believes the Developer failed to make a best faith effort to 
achieve the EOP goals; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 

Authority, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate is hereby authorized to issue a 
Certificate of Completion certifying the completion of development at 46 S. 44th Street, subject 
to the following conditions/penalties: 
 

1.  Require the repayment of an administrative fee in the amount of  
             Five Hundred Fifty Dollars ($550.00), which is 1% of the purchase  
             price as set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

11



                                                  Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
                                              Volume 68 – Page 12 

 
2.  Approval of revised plans and payment of an unauthorized plan  
             change fee in the amount of Twenty Thousand Three Hundred  
             Seventy-Seven Dollars and Fifty Cents ($20,377.50), which represents 
             5% of the total construction costs as remitted by the Developer's 
             notarized construction affidavit. 

 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 

documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the 
Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 

 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with 

the advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable 
to carry out its purposes and intents. 
 
Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Buckley, and Ms. 
Maynard. 
 

 
 
Mr. Lawrence presented "Item II(b) – Certification of Completion for 2476 Jasper Street and 
2478 Jasper Street" in substance consistent with the attached Fact Sheet hereto  
 
Board Action  
 
Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on the resolution.  Upon motion made and duly seconded, the 
resolution was approved as follows: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-07 
 
RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 
FOR 2476 JASPER STREET AND 2478 JASPER STREET 
  
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-101, adopted by the Philadelphia 
Redevelopment Authority ("Authority") Board on September 14, 2016, the Authority entered into a 
Redevelopment Agreement dated July 21, 2016 ("Redevelopment Agreement") with Blue Truck 
Enterprises LLC ("Redeveloper") for the development of 2476 Jasper Street and 2478 Jasper Street 
(collectively, the "Properties"); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Redeveloper purchased the Properties for One Hundred Fourteen 
Thousand Dollars ($114,000.00); 
 
 WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority conveyed the Properties to 
Redeveloper by Deed dated on January 27, 2017; 
 

12



 Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
  Volume 68 – Page 13 

WHEREAS, the Redeveloper then developed the Properties as two (2) single-family homes 
and sold 2476 Jasper Street in June, 2018, and sold 2478 Jasper Street in December, 2017; 

WHEREAS, based on Authority records, there was no pre-construction meeting to initiate 
an Economic Opportunity Plan; 

WHEREAS, to date, 2478 Jasper Street has been sold by its original homebuyer and 2476 
Jasper Street is in the process of being sold by its original homebuyer and the title company has now 
requested a Certificate of Completion for the Properties; and  

WHEREAS, the Properties have been developed into residential and related use in 
accordance with the development obligations set forth in the Redevelopment Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate is hereby authorized to issue a 
Certificate of Completion certifying the completion of the development of the properties located at 
2476 Jasper Street and 2478 Jasper Street in accordance with the Redevelopment Agreement and 
the attached Fact Sheet. 

FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Deputy 
Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 

FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the 
advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to 
carry out its purposes and intents. 

Voting for the foregoing resolution:  Ms. Fadullon, Mr. Cuorato, Ms. Buckley, and Ms. 
Maynard. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Ms. Fadullon stated before the Board opens up the public comment portion, Ms. Fadullon stated that 
she believed there are many people to speak on 13th and Bainbridge project.  Ms. Fadullon stated the 
Board is not going to entertain public comment on this project at this time because it is not before 
the Board today.  There will be plenty of opportunity for comment on this project when it is again 
presented and, at such time, the Board will hear from the public.  Ms. Fadullon further stated that 
several emails and letters were received from the public expressing their opinions on this project.  
These documents have been forwarded to the appropriate personnel and will be included in the 
record when 13th & Bainbridge project comes back before the Board.  

13



 Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
  Volume 68 – Page 14 

Ms. Fadullon asked if there is anyone interested to approach the Board about other issues than 13th 
& Bainbridge.  Ms. Fadullon recognized Ms. Haskins and invited her to speak.  Ms. Haskins 
thanked the members of the Board and stated that the community appreciates what the Board has 
done to date in regard to the Germantown "Y".  Ms. Haskins stated the community is working hard 
and is focused on allowing and helping the community to get engaged in what they want to see with 
respect to this project.  Ms. Haskins further stated that the Board will be hearing from the 
community on this project.   

Ms. Haskins stated that, in the meantime, the community would like to know the history regarding 
the prior proposed project.  Ms. Haskins asked whether there was a process other than through the 
Right-to-Know Law ("RTKL") to obtain the files for the Germantown "Y" project. Mr. Harmon 
replied that this would have to be done through the RTKL process and we would have to review the 
documents to determine whether there is any proprietary or other confidential information that is 
exempted from the RTKL, all of which can take significant staff time.  Mr. Harmon informed Ms. 
Haskins that she can submit the request to him and staff will process as soon as possible.  Mr. 
Harmon stated there were numerous employees involved in this project and several employees have 
since left the Authority, so it will take time to assemble those documents.  Mr. Harmon further 
stated that the more specific requests are, the quicker the responses can be turned around. Ms. 
Haskins responded that she understands.  

Ms. Haskins then stated that the community would like to understand the PRA's process for issuing 
Requests for Proposals ("RFPs") for projects and how responses to RFPs are evaluated.  Ms. 
Haskins asked if the process is published anywhere. Ms. Haskins stated that this information will 
help the community understand the process. 

Mr. Harmon responded that he would answer what he could and asked Mr. Rodriguez to add if 
necessary.  Mr. Harmon stated the best way to start would be to review the City's Land Disposition 
Policy, which is posted on the website and is probably the document most applicable to the actual 
process.  Mr. Harmon stated that the City's Land Disposition Policy gives the general overview as to 
how properties are disposed of and how responses to RFPs are processed.   

Mr. Rodriguez stated that the website has the Land Disposition Policy that has been adopted by the 
PRA as well as the Philadelphia Land Bank, which Land Disposition Policy is a uniform format 
providing the process and requirements for both agencies when disposing any public land, which 
includes City-owned land disposed through the PRA and the Land Bank.  Mr. Rodriguez stated 
there are generally two (2) ways for disposing land which are explained in detail - a competitive 
format, which involves the issuance of an RFP, and a non-competitive process.   

Mr. Rodriguez stated that if Ms. Haskin's had any specific questions, she can reach out to staff and 
we will try to answer them.  Mr. Rodriguez also stated that staff would be more than willing to 
schedule a meeting to further discuss the process in more detail.  Ms. Haskins thanked Mr. 
Rodriguez.  

Ms. Fadullon recognized and invited Ms. Weiss to speak. Ms. Weiss informed the Board that she 
wants to follow-up on the Lower Germantown properties community meeting.  Ms. Weiss stated the 
community meeting did not take place.  Ms. Weiss asked if the community meeting is back on track 

14



 Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
  Volume 68 – Page 15 

and when it would take place.  Mr. Rodriguez stated that there has been no delay – staff was 
finalizing the procurement and contracting process with the Maple Company.  Mr. Rodriguez stated 
that the Maple Company is going through their process, are doing a first-tier outreach and have been 
working on this project.  Mr. Rodriguez stated that he anticipates that the Maple Company will 
begin to reach out to various community organizations and residents beginning at some point in 
February, 2022.  Mr. Rodriguez further stated that once the meeting dates are determined, they will 
be posted on the website.   

Ms. Fadullon stated that she anticipates that the first public meeting will happen sometime in 
February.  Ms. Fadullon stated that there will be significant notice to the community.  Ms. Weiss 
responded that she hopes that the Maple Company will include the community organizations as a 
mechanism to help notify residents of the community.   

Ms. Fadullon informed her fellow Board members, staff and public this is her last meeting as the 
Authority's chair.  Ms. Fadullon stated she has been doing this for the last six (6) years and has 
enjoyed her time.  Ms. Fadullon stated the Board has broached a lot of important issues and has 
completed a lot of important work. Ms. Fadullon stated that she has enjoyed serving with her fellow 
Board members.   

Ms. Fadullon stated that she wants to be clear that she is stepping down for timing reasons.  Ms. 
Fadullon stated she oversees various City agencies and departments along with serving on or 
chairing fourteen (14) public board and commissions, which is very time intensive.   

Ms. Fadullon stated that Mr. Thomas will be appointed to the PRA Board as her replacement and 
will be the new Chair.  Ms. Fadullon stated that there is not a more qualified person take over the 
Board.  Mr. Thomas appointment will begin in February 2022.   

NEW BUSINESS 

Ms. Fadullon inquired if there was any new business for the Board.  No new business was presented 
to the Board.  

15



 Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
  Volume 68 – Page 16 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. Fadullon declared the meeting 
adjourned at 4:38 P.M. 

___________________________ 
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD 

16



 Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
  Volume 68 – Page 17 

[PUBLIC ATTENDANCE LIST AND TRANSCRIPT OF QUESTIONS AND 
RESPONSES THERETO, IF ANY, ARE ATTACHED ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

17



Attended User Name (Original Name) Email
Yes Jason Templet jtemplet31@gmail.com
Yes Jason Templet jtemplet31@gmail.com
Yes jamila.davis jamila.davis@phila.gov
Yes Brent Howard brent.howard@katapult.com
Yes Roderick Ward rward21@hotmail.com
Yes Oluwafemi Adetiba oadetiba@gmail.com
Yes Todd Hestand# PHDC todd.hestand@phdc.phila.gov
Yes Raina Poonam (she/her) rsatija227@gmail.com
Yes Erin Jay erin@flynnmedia.com
Yes Jayme bermudezjayme@yahoo.com
Yes Deborah Willis willis80@verizon.net
Yes Guy Sheets# BSTI gsheets@bstiweb.com
Yes Nicole Hostettler tum94693@temple.edu
Yes Megan McCoy (she/her) mmccoy@centerinthepark.org
Yes 12158435555
Yes Trang Balchunas trang.balchunas@gmail.com
Yes Eric balchunas ebalchunas@gmail.com
Yes Turtlebug play@turtlebug.org
Yes Sophia Fox sophia.fox@qcausa.com
Yes Beatrice brsmith1@hotmail.com
Yes Beatrice brsmith1@hotmail.com
Yes Hawthorne Neighborhood info@hecphila.org
Yes Tim Fisher timothycfisher@gmail.com
Yes Julie Stapleton Carroll tug14154@temple.edu
Yes Vivek Allada vallada1@comcast.net
Yes Ashish Patil apatil121@gmail.com
Yes Ashish Patil apatil121@gmail.com
Yes yvonne haskins yvonne.haskins1@gmail.com
Yes Michael Wilkins mikewilkinsjr@gmail.com
Yes Tom Copestick tomdevonmorgan@hotmail.com
Yes Michelle Lewis mlewis@nwcsinc.org
Yes Michelle Lewis mlewis@nwcsinc.org
Yes Bryon bryonblue@yahoo.com
Yes Erin DelBaggio erindelbaggio@gmail.com
Yes Richard Dickson rdallasjr@comcast.net
Yes 12158435555

PRA Board Attendance of January 12, 2022 

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022
Volume 68 - Page 18 

18



# Question Asker Name Asker Email Answer(s)

1

I will like to make 
comment for the lot 
on 13th and 
Bainbridge st

Hawthorne 
Neighborhood info@hecphila.org

Good evening, that matter is not 
on today's agenda. The Board 
CHair will address and/or take 
comments when we com to the 
old business portion of the agenda

2

I thought the vote on 
13th st was today?  
That was the 
indication from 
December's meeting Michael Wilkins mikewilkinsjr@gmail.com

The Board tabled the item until 
the Developer has address the 
items raised at the December 
Board meeting. The disposition 
will not be brought back to the 
Board for consideration until they 

3

How does the public 
comment if the chat 
is disabled?

Raina Poonam 
(she/her) rsatija227@gmail.com

Public comment can be made on 
agenda items. If an item is not on 
the agenda it would be addressed 
in eithe Old or New Business at 
the end of the regular agenda

4

I’m unable to chat, 
so i’m asking how 
comment from 
public can happen if 
public cannot chat

Raina Poonam 
(she/her) rsatija227@gmail.com

I believe you can click on “raise 
hand” and you will be called on to 
speak when appropriate. Thank 
you.

5

Apologies, had to 
step away for a 
moment.  Will there 
be additional 
discussion around 
13th st during old 
business at the end 
of the agenda?  
Related:  Is there a 
deadline for the 
developer to 
respond to concerns 
raised by the 
community? Michael Wilkins mikewilkinsjr@gmail.com

We will not be taking comments 
or questions about 13th & 
Bainbridge at this meeting. 
Comments that have been sent in 
will be documented and included 
when 13th &Bainbridge comes 
back to the agenda. Staff is 
currently working with the 
developer to address the concerns 
of the community

PRA Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 - Q & A 

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022
Volume 68 - Page 19 

19



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  January 12,  2022 
Appointment  of  the Board  of  D irectors  of  RT  HeadHouse 
Development  Corporat ion 

ENTITY: RT HeadHouse Development Corporation 

Nature of Transaction:  Authorizat ion to appoint the fol lowing f ive (5)  indiv iduals to  
serve on the board of directors of RT HeadHouse Development Corporation for a term 
of one (1)  year beginning February 10, 2022, or unt i l  the appointment is  terminated by 
the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ( the "Authority")  Board:  

Ryan Ambrose 
David Thomas 
Darren Wil l iams 
Alberta Benn 
Mathen Pullukattu 

PROJECT INFORMATION: 12 t h  and Market HeadHouse Condominium (Reading 
Terminal HeadHouse)  

Address:  1113-31 Market Street,  1113-A-31 Market Street and 1112-40 Fi lbert  
Street  

COMMENTS OR OTHER CONDITIONS: 

HeadHouse Retai l  Associates,  L .P.  ("HeadHouse Retai l") ,  a Pennsylvania  l imited 
partnership created by the Authority,  is  the owner of Units #2 and #3 in the 12t h  and 
Market HeadHouse Condominium. RT HeadHouse Development Corporation, of which 
the Authority is  the sole shareholder,  i s  the general  partner of HeadHouse Retai l  and 
is  responsible for  the overal l  management and control  of HeadHouse Retai l .   

Proposed Resolut ion is  attached.  

Item I (a)

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022
Volume 68 - Page 20 

20



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  January 12,  2022 
Third Amendment to  Cooperat ion  Agreement  – Ci ty  of   
Ph i ladelphia ,  act ing through its  Department of  Publ ic  Property 
400 N.  Broad Street  

NAME OF DEVELOPER/APPLI CANT :   City  of  Phi lade lphia ,  act ing  thro ugh i t s  
D epartm ent  o f  P ubl i c  P ro perty  ( the  "Ci ty " )  

Nature  of  T ransac t ion:   Approv a l  o f  Th i rd  Am endm ent to  Co o perat io n 
Agreement between the  P hi lade lphia  Redev e lo pment  Autho r i ty  ( "PRA" )  and the 
C i ty  to  extend the  term  o f  the  Coo perat ion  Agreement ,  as  prev io us ly  am ended,  
fo r  an  addi t io na l  twe lv e  (12)  m o nths ,  e f fect iv e  as  o f  Octo ber  16 ,  2021 .  

BACKGROUND: 

The  pro pert ies  lo cated at  400 N.  Broad St reet  ( the  "Broad Street  Property " )  
and 1501  Ca l lo whi l l  St reet  ( the  "Cal low hi l l  St reet  Property " )  ( the  Bro ad St reet 
P arce l  and the Ca l lowhi l l  S t reet  P arce l ,  to gether,  the "Propert ies" )  are  be ing 
dev e lo ped by 400  North  Bro ad P artners ,  L .P .  ( "Landlord" )  and wi l l  be  de l iv ered 
as  a  turnkey  pro ject  fo r  the C i ty  to  o ccupy .   The  Bro ad St reet  P ro perty  co nta ins  
appro x imate ly  468 ,234  rentable  square feet  which  i s  ant ic ipated to  be 
dev e lo ped fo r  use  by  the  P hi lade lphia  P o l i ce  D epartment,  w i th  v ar io us 
o perat io na l ,  adm inistrat iv e  and accesso ry  o f f i ces  inc luding,  but  no t  l im i ted  to ,  
the  C i ty  mo rgue  and to x ico lo gy  lab,  and Ci ty  F i re  D epartment  o f f i ces  inc lud ing 
the  C i ty  F i re  Co mmand Center .  The  Ca l lo whi l l  S t reet  P ro perty  i s  current ly  
s t r iped fo r  590  s tandard  autom o bi le  park ing  s ta l l s  and wi l l  co nt inue  to  be  used 
fo r  park ing.   Landlo rd  wi l l  be  per fo rm ing  the  rehabi l i tat io n/ dev e lo pment  o f  the 
P ro pert ies  at  the  d i rect io n  o f  the  C i ty  (here in ,  the  "Proj ec t" )  

Per  Reso lut io n  No .  2017 -57 ,  ado pted by  the  P RA o n August  9 ,  2017 ,  the  P RA 
entered into  a  Co o perat io n Agreem ent wi th  the C i ty  autho r iz ing  the PRA to  act  
as  agent  for  the  C ity  wi th  respect  to  secur ing  a  co nsul tant  to  represent  the C i ty  
wi th  the  o vers ight ,  ana lys i s  and mo nito r ing  o f  P ro ject  co nst ruct io n  and 
per fo rm  o ther  serv ices  wi th  respect  to  the  P ro ject  as  deta i led  in the 
Co o perat io n  Agreement  (co l lect iv e ly ,  the  "S erv ic es" ) .  

Per  Reso lut io n  2 018-01 ,  ado pted by  the  PRA o n January  10 ,  2018 ,  the  P RA and 
the  C i ty  prev io us ly  entered into  a  F i rs t  Am endm ent to  Co o perat io n  Agreem ent 
( the  "Fi rst  Amendment" )  dated Octo ber  15 ,  2018 ,  where in  the  P RA and the C i ty  
agreed to  expand the sco pe  o f  serv ices  to  be  per fo rm ed by  the  P RA o n beha l f  
o f  o r  as  agent  fo r  the C i ty  under the  Coo perat io n  Agreem ent .  

Item I (b)

3
Board Meeting of January 12, 2022
Volume 68 - Page 21

21



The  P RA and the  C i ty  prev io us ly  entered into  a  Seco nd Amendment  to 
Co o perat io n  Agreement  ( the "S ec ond Amendment" )  dated August  4 ,  2020,  
m ade  e f fect ive  Octo ber  17 ,  2018 ,  where in  the  PRA and C i ty  agreed to  m utua l ly  
exerc i se  the  Renewal  Terms  as  set  fo rth  in  P aragraph 2 .1  o f  the  Coo perat io n 
Agreement ,  as  prev io us ly  amended,  such that  the term o f  the  Co o perat io n  
Agreement  as  pro v ided in  P aragraph 2 .1  o f  the Coo perat io n Agreem ent ,  as  
prev io us ly  am ended,  was  extended to  October  16 ,  2021  (here in ,  the  "T erm" ) .  

REQUES T :  

The  PRA and the  C i ty  wo uld  l i ke  to  aga in  am end the  Co o perat ion  Agreem ent ,  as  
prev io us ly  am ended by the F i rs t  Am endm ent and Seco nd Am endm ent ,  to  
extend the  Term  fo r  an  addi t io na l  twe lv e  (12)  mo nths ,  e f fect ive  as  o f  Octo ber 
16 ,  2021 .  

The  PRA wi l l  co nt inue  to  per fo rm  a l l  Serv ices  as  def ined in  the  Coo perat io n 
Agreement ,  as  prev io us ly  amended,  and the  C i ty  wi l l  cont inue  to  be 
respo ns ib le  fo r  payment  o f  a l l  co sts  incurred by  the  PRA under  the  Co o perat io n 
Agreement ,  as  prev ious ly  am ended,  and the  C i ty  wi l l  co nt inue  to  pay  the  P RA a 
f i xed  adm inis t rat iv e  fee o f  e ight  percent  (8%)  o f  a l l  co sts  incurred fo r  i ts  
serv ices .   

P ro po sed Reso lut io n  at tached.  

Prepared by :  Ryan Harm o n 

Item I (b)

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
Volume 68 - Page 22 22



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  January 12,  2022  
Approval  of  Grant  Agreement  ($500,000)  with  the 
Phi ladelphia  Housing Author ity 

NAME OF SPONS OR/DEVELOPER :  P hi lade lphia  Ho us ing  Autho r ity  ("PHA" )  

NAT URE OF TRANSACT I ON:   Autho r izat io n fo r  the P hi lade lphia  Redev e lo pment 
Autho r i ty  ( "PRA" )  to  enter  into  a  Grant  Agreem ent  wi th  P HA where in  PRA sha l l  
pro v ide a  grant  to  PHA in  an am o unt  not  to  exceed F ive  Hundred Tho usand 
D o l lars  ($500 ,000 )  ( the  "Grant  Funds" ) .   

The  Grant  Pro ceeds  sha l l  be  used by  P HA fo r  the  purpo ses  o ut l ined in  the 
Cho ice  Ne ighbo rhoods  Im plem entat io n Grant  Agreem ent (Grant  Num ber 
PA3A518 CNG113)  dated Decem ber  17 ,  2014  (the "Choic e  Grant  Agreement" ) ,  to  
be  ut i l i zed  so le ly  to  ass i s t  in  the  creat io n  o f  hom eo wnership  oppo rtuni t ies  fo r  
( i ) lo w- incom e res idents  o f  publ i c  and/or  ass i s ted  ho us ing  res idents  o f  the
No rth  Centra l  Ne ighbo rhoo d (as  def ined in  the  Cho ice  Grant  Agreement)  and
( i i ) fo rmer res idents  o f  the No rr i s  Apartments  ho us ing  dev e lo pm ents,  and ( i i i )
to  lo w- incom e res idents  o f  publ i c  and/o r  ass i s ted  ho us ing  res idents  in  the  C i ty
o f  P h i lade lphia  ( "Ci ty" ) ,  and ( iv )  o ther  low- inco me peo ple  in  the  C i ty .

COMMENT S OR OT HER CONDI TI ONS : 

The  so urce  o f  the  Grant  Funds  i s  PRA wo rk ing  capi ta l .  

P ro po sed Reso lut io n  is  a t tached.  

Prepared by :  Ryan Harm o n 

Item I (c)

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022
Volume 68 - Page 23 23



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  January 12,  2022 
Conveyance of  Ti t le  of  C i ty  Propert ies  through Phi ladelphia 
Redevelopment  Author i ty to Phi ladelphia  Land Bank 

Nature of  Transaction:  The Phi ladelphia  Redevelopment Author i ty ("PRA")  
wi l l  fac i l i tate  the conveyance of  t it le  of  propert ies  owned by the Ci ty of 
Ph i ladelphia  ("Ci ty")  to  the Phi ladelphia  Land Bank.  

• The conveyance of  these propert ies  wi l l  be  for the disposit ion,  reuse,
and management  by the Phi ladelphia  Land Bank.

• The City propert ies  l i s ted  below were approved for  the conveyance to
the Phi ladelphia  Land Bank in  co l laborat ion  with  the 1s t  Counci l
D ist r ict ,  2n d  Counci l  D ist r ict ,  3 r d  Counci l  D ist r ict ,  5 t h  Counci l  D ist r ict
and 8t h  Counci l  D istr ict .

PROPERTY INFORMATION: 

The City  propert ies  at tached hereto as  Exh ib i t  "A"  wi l l  be  conveyed to 
the Land Bank without considerat ion through the PRA, pursuant to 
Sect ion  2109 of  the Land Bank Act ,  68  Pa.  C.S .A.  §2109(d)(3) ,  and 
Chapter  16-700 of  The Phi ladelphia  Code.  

Prepared by:  Mathen Pul lukattu ,  Senior Development Specia l i st  
Reviewed by:  Jess ie  Lawrence,  D irector  of  Real  Estate 

Item I (d)

Board Meeting of January 12, 2021
Volume 68 - Page 24 24



EXHIBIT "A" 

1st Council District Properties 

731 Mercy Street 

2nd Council District Properties 

1537 S. Lambert Street 
1514 S. Opal Street 
1520 S. Opal Street 
3036 Titan Street 
2008 Wilder Street 
1306 S. 28th Street 

3rd Council District Properties 

3851 Aspen Street 
3855 Aspen Street 
3732 Haverford Avenue 
3825 Fairmount Avenue 
3605 Melon Street 
3607 Melon Street 
3832 Melon Street 
3858 Mount Vernon Street 
614 N. Shedwick Street 
3832 Wallace Street 
3830 Wallace Street 
708 N. 34th Street 
709 N. 35th Street 
676 N. 36th Street 
681 N. 37th Street 
740 N.. 38th Street 
747 N 39th Street 

5th Council District Properties 

1403 N. 17th Street 
1409 N. 17th Street 
1412 N. 17th Street 
1415 N. 17th Street 
1416 N. 17th Street 
1421 N. 17th Street 
1435 N. 17th Street 
1441 N. 17th Street 
1624 Jefferson Street 

Item I (d)

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
Volume 68 - Page 25 

25



8th Council District Properties 

4635 Germantown Avenue 

Item I (d)

Board Meeting January 12, 2022 
Volume 68 - Page 26 26



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  January 12,  2022 
Conveyance of  PRA Propert ies to Phi ladelphia Land Bank 

Nature of  Transaction:  The Phi ladelphia Redevelopment Author i ty ( the "PRA")  
wi l l  fac i l i tate  the conveyance of  t i t le  of  these propert ies  owned by the PRA to 
the Phi ladelphia Land Bank:   

• The conveyance of  these propert ies  wi l l  be  for the disposit ion,  reuse,
and management  by the Phi ladelphia  Land Bank.

• The PRA propert ies  l i s ted  below were approved for  conveyance to the
Phi ladelphia  Land Bank in  co l laborat ion with  the 2n d  Counci l  D ist r ict ,  3 r d

Counci l  D ist r ict ,  and 5t h  Counci l  D ist r ict  Of f ice .

PROPERTY INFORMATION: 

PRA Conveyance:   The PRA propert ies  attached hereto as  Exh ib it  "A" wi l l  
be  conveyed to  the Phi ladelphia Land Bank  without  considerat ion,  
pursuant to  Sect ion 2109 of  Land Bank Act ,  68 Pa.  C.S .A.  §  2109(d)(3) .  

Prepared by:  Br ian  Romano,  Project  Manager I I  
Reviewed by:  Jess ie  Lawrence,  D irector  of  Real  Estate 

Item I (e)

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022
Volume 68 - Page 27 

27



EXHIBIT "A" 

2 n d  Counci l  District  Propert ies  

2609-27 Sears  St ree t  
3014-26 Whar ton  Stree t  
1308 S .  26 t h  S t ree t  
1310 S .  26 t h  S t ree t  
1312 S .  26 t h  S t ree t  
1314 S .  26 t h  S t ree t  

3 r d  Counci l  Dis tr ic t  Propert ies  

3713 Brandywine  Stree t  
3835 Brandywine  Stree t  
3842 Olive  St ree t  
3841 Melon St reet  
616  N.  Shedwick  St ree t  
708  N.  Shedwick  St ree t  
710  N.  Shedwick  St ree t  
714  N.  Shedwick  St ree t  
3405 Wallace  Street  
682  N.  33rd Street  
705  N.  35th  Street  
705  N.  35th  Street  

5 t h  Counci l  District  Propert ies  

1900 Monument  Street  
1902 Monument  Street  
1620 N.  Sydenham Street  
1622 N.  Sydenham Street  
1624 N.  Sydenham Street  
1801 N.  31s t  S t ree t  
1802-10 N.  31s t  S t reet  
1819 N.  31s t  S t ree t  
1821 N.  31s t  S t ree t  
1825 N.31s t  S t ree t   
1827-37 N.  31s t  S t reet  
1841-43 N.  31s t  S t reet  

Item I (e)

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
Volume 68 - Page 2828



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  January 12,  2022 
Issuance of  Cert i f icate  of  Complet ion 
46 S .  44t h  Street  

NAME OF DEVELOPER/ APPLICANT :    4644  So uth,  LP  

NAT URE OF T RANSACTI ON:  The  Bo ard i s  asked to  co ns ider  a  Reso lut io n  
autho r iz ing  the  i ssuance  o f  a  Cert i f i cate  o f  Co m plet io n  fo r  46  S .  44 t h  S t reet  
( the  "P ro perty" ) .    

BACKGROUND:   By  Reso lut io n  No .  2015-130  ado pted o n Nov em ber  18 ,  2015 ,  
the  Redeve lo pm ent Autho r i ty  entered into  a  Redeve lo pm ent Agreement  wi th 
4644  So uth,  LP  ( "D ev e lo per" ) ,  to  co nst ruct  the  s i te  into  a  three  (3 )  s to ry 
bui ld ing  wi th  three  (3 )  two -bedro om uni ts  o f  renta l  ho us ing o n each f lo o r.   
The  D ev e lo per purchased the pro perty  fo r  F i f ty -F iv e Tho usand D o l lars  
($55 ,000 .00) .  Pert inent  reco rd ing  do cum ent  i s  as  fo l lo ws:  

• Redeve lo pm ent  Agreem ent:   June  3 ,  2016,  Do c .  ID  No .  5306550 9
• D eed:   June  3 ,  2016,  Do c .  ID  No .  53065510

DEVELOPMENT  B ACKGROUND:   D ev e lo per  has  requested a  Cert i f i cate  o f  
Com plet io n  and subm it ted perm it ted bui ld ing  p lans  that  were  no t  prev io us ly  
appro v ed by  the  P RA.    The p lans  inc lude  m ater ia l  changes to  the  pro ject ,  
changing  the  sco pe  of  the  pro ject  f rom  a  three  (3 )  s to ry  bui ld ing  to  a  fo ur  (4 )  
s to ry  bui ld ing  and in creas ing  the  uni t  co unt  f ro m  three  (3 )  two-bedroom  uni ts  
to  fo ur  (4 )  two -bedro om uni ts .  The D ev elo per  a lso  co nst ructed a  p i lo t  ho use 
and changed the  pro po sed exter io r  m ater ia l s  f ro m  br ick  and s tucco  to  a lum inum 
s id ing.  The D ev e lo per  has  subm itted a  const ruct io n a f f idav it  determ in ing  that 
to ta l  co nst ruct io n  costs  fo r  the  pro ject  were in  the  amo unt  o f  Fo ur  Hundred 
and Sev en Tho usand F iv e  Hundred and F i f ty  Do l lars  ($407 ,550 .00) .  

The  Bo ard  se lect io n a l so  inc luded the appro v a l  o f  an  Eco nom ic  Oppo rtuni ty  P lan 
( "EOP ")  w ith  ranges  o f  MBE –  15%,  WBE –  10%.    The  Deve lo per  fa i led  to  m eet  
i t s  Eco nom ic Oppo rtuni ty  P lan  (EOP )  go a ls  as  co nf i rm ed by  D HCD .   

As  the  Dev e lo per  has  com pleted co nst ruct io n  there  i s  no  o ppo rtuni ty  to  co rrect  
the  s i tuat io n  as  the  Pro perty  has  rece ived i t s  Cert i f i cate  o f  Occupancy  f rom  the 
C i ty  o f  P h i lade lphia  -  D epartm ent  o f  L i censes  & Inspect io ns .     

Item II (a)

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
Volume 68 - Page 2929



To day the  bo ard  i s  requested to  autho r ize  a  reso lut io n  to  enable  the  fo l lo wing:  

1 . Requi re  the repayment  o f  an adm inis t rat ive  fee in  the amo unt  of
F iv e  Hundred F i f ty  D ol lars  ($550 .00)  which  i s  1% o f  the  purchase
pr ice  as  set  fo rth  in  the  Redev e lo pm ent  Agreem ent .

2 . Appro v a l  o f  rev ised plans  and paym ent  o f  an  unautho r ized p lan
change  fee  in  the amo unt  o f  Twenty  Tho usand Three  Hundred
Sev enty -Sev en D o l lars  and F i f ty  Cents  ($20,377 .50)  which
represents  5% o f  the  to ta l  co nst ruct io n  costs  as  rem it ted by  the
D ev e lo per 's  no tar i zed co nst ruct io n  af f idav i t .

Legal  Ent i ty  & Pr inc ipal  Par tners  ( i f  a p p l i c a b l e ) :   46 S .  44 t h  S t reet  

 Kale ido sco pe  LLC  –  Ro der ick  Ward –  89%
 P artnersh ip  CD C –  Stev en Wi l l iam s –  10%
 Gateway  L iv ing  LLC –  Ro der ick  Ward –  1%

PROPERT Y IN FORMATI ON: 46  S .  44 t h  S t reet  

Descr ipt ion:   1 ,029  sq .  f t .  Zoning :   CMX-4 Use:   Res ident ia l  

At  the  d i rect io n  o f  the  Co unc i l  perso n,  the sa le  o f  the  Pro perty  was  handled as  
a  d i rect  sa le  to  the  D ev e lo per  and the  d ispos i t io n pr ice  was  establ i shed 
thro ugh an  independent  appra isa l .  

   F INANCING: 

The  Deve lo per  purchased the  Pro perty  and pro v ided do cum entat io n  o f  
av a i lab le  funds  in  an  amo unt  no less  than the  tota l  pro ject  co st .   

COMMENT S OR OT HER CONDI TI ONS : 

The  Dev e lo per i s  com pl iant  wi th the C i ty  o f  P h i lade lphia  Revenue  Departm ent  
and has  no  o utstanding  tax  o bl igat io ns ,  co nf l i c t s  o f  interest ,  o r  unreso lv ed 
v io lat io n o f  C i ty  L&I  co des .   The Deve lo per  was new to  the P RA,  and therefo re ,  
no  past  per fo rm ance  has  been reco rded.    

P ro po sed Reso lut io n and suppo rt ing  pro ject  in fo rm at io n are  at tached (s i te  m ap 
and pho to graph) .   

P repared by :  T racy  P inso n-Rev iere,  P ro ject  Manager  I I  
Rev iewed by :  Jess ie  Lawrence ,  D i recto r  o f  Rea l  Es tate   

Item II (a)

Board Meeting January 12, 2022
Volume 68 - Page 30 30



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  January 12,  2022 
Cert i f icate  of  Complet ion 
2476 Jasper  Street  and 2478 Jasper  Street  

NAME OF DEVELOPER/ APPLICANT :  Blue  Truck  Enterpr i ses  LLC ( "Redeve lo per" )  

NAT URE OF TRANSACTI ON:   The  Bo ard i s  asked to  author ize  a  Reso lut io n  
autho r iz ing  the i ssuance  o f  a  Cert i f i cate  of  Com plet io n fo r  2476  Jasper  St reet  and 
2478  Jasper  St reet  ( co l lect iv e ly ,  the  "Pro pert ies")  which  were  dev e lo ped into  two 
(2 ) s ing le - fam i ly  homes  ( the  "P ro ject" ) .

BACKGROUND: By Reso lut io n  No .  2016-101 ,  ado pted o n Septem ber 14 ,  2016,  the 
P hi lade lphia  Redev e lo pment  Autho r i ty  ( "Autho r i ty" )  entered into  a  Redev e lo pment 
Agreement  dated Ju ly  2 1 ,  2016  ("Redev e lo pment  Agreem ent" )  w i th  the 
Redeve lo per  and appro ved the  co nst ruct io n  o f  the Pro ject .  The  Redeve lo per  
purchased the  P ropert ies  fo r  One  Hundred Fo urteen Tho usand D o l lars  
($114 ,000 .00 ) .  P ert inent  reco rd ing  document  i s  as  fo l lo ws:  

• D eed:   D oc .  ID  No .  53169184
• Redeve lo pm ent  Agreem ent:  D oc .  ID  No .  53169185

The  Autho r i ty  co nveyed the  P ro pert ies  to  the  Redev e loper  in  January ,  2017 .   The 
Redeve lo per  then so ld  each uni t  o n  the  Pro pert ies  in  D ecem ber ,  2017  and June ,  
2018 .  To  date ,  2478 Jasper  St reet  has  been so ld  by  i t s  o r ig ina l  ho mebuyer  and 
2476 Jasper  St reet  i s  in  the process  o f  being  so ld  by  i t s  o r ig ina l  hom ebuyer  and 
the  t i t le  com pany  has  no w requested a  Cert i f i cate  o f  Complet io n.  Based o n 
Autho r i ty  reco rds ,  there  was no pre-co nstruct io n  meet ing  to  ini t ia te  an  Eco no m ic 
Oppo rtuni ty  P lan  (EOP)  due  to  an  ov ers ight  by  Autho r ity  s ta f f .  Because  o f  th i s ,  the 
department  tasked with  mo ni to r ing  the  EOP  canno t  s ign  o f f  o n  the  Pro ject .   

Sho uld  the Board  appro ve  th is  Cert i f i cate  o f  Com plet io n,  the t i t le  com pany has  
been made aware  that  the  fo l lo wing  rest r ic t io ns  wi l l  no t  be re leased:  

1 . That  no  perso n sha l l  be  depr ived o f  the  r ight  to  l iv e  in  the  P rem ises  o r
to  use  any o f  the fac i l i t ies  there in ,  by  reaso n o f  race ,  c reed,  co lo r  o r
nat io na l  o r ig in .

2 . That  there  sha l l  be  no  d iscr im inat io n  in  the  use ,  sa le  o r  lease  o f  any
part  o f  the  P ro ject  aga inst  any  perso n because  o f  race ,  co lo r ,  re l ig io n  o r
nat io na l  o r ig in .

Item II (b)

Board Meeting January 12, 2022
Volume 68 - Page 31 31



P ro po sed Reso lut io n and suppo rt ing  inf o rmat io n are  at tached ( s i te  m ap and 
pho to graphs) .   

P repared by :  Br ian  Rom ano 
Rev iewed by :  Jess ie  Lawrence 

Item II (b)

Board Meeting of January 12, 2022 
Volume 68 - Page 32 

32



 
 

 
 
 

BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  February 9 ,  2022 
Conveyance of  Ti t le  of  C i ty  Propert ies  through Phi ladelphia  
Redevelopment  Author i ty to Phi ladelphia  Land Bank 
 

 

Nature of  Transaction:  The Phi ladelphia  Redevelopment Author i ty ("PRA")  
wi l l  fac i l i tate  the conveyance of  t it le  of  propert ies  owned by the Ci ty of 
Ph i ladelphia  ("Ci ty")  to  the Phi ladelphia  Land Bank.  
 

•  The conveyance of  these propert ies  wi l l  be  for the disposit ion,  reuse,  
and management  by the Phi ladelphia  Land Bank. 

 
•  The City propert ies  l i s ted  below were approved for  the conveyance to 

the Phi ladelphia  Land Bank in  co l laborat ion  with  the 1s t  Counci l  
D ist r ict  and the 5t h  Counci l  D ist r ict .  

 
PROPERTY INFORMATION: 
  

The City  propert ies  at tached hereto as  Exh ib i t  "A"  wi l l  be  conveyed to 
the Land Bank without considerat ion through the PRA, pursuant to 
Sect ion  2109 of  the Land Bank Act ,  68  Pa.  C.S .A.  §2109(d)(3) ,  and 
Chapter  16-700 of  The Phi ladelphia  Code.  

 
 
Prepared by:   Mathen Pul lukattu 
Reviewed by:  Jess ie  Lawrence 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item I (a)

1



  
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 
1st Council District Property 
 
2022 E. Fletcher Street 
 
 
5th Council District Properties 
 
2453 N. Carlisle Street 
1532 N. Marston Street 
719 Montgomery Avenue 
737 Montgomery Avenue 
739 Montgomery Avenue 
741 Montgomery Avenue 
743 Montgomery Avenue 
1433 N. Myrtlewood Street 
1454 N. Myrtlewood Street 
1428 N. Myrtlewood Street 
1443 N. Myrtlewood Street 
3013 W. York Street 
3015 W. York Street 
3108 W. York Street 
2408 N. 31st Street 
2410 N. 31st Street 
2412 N. 31st Street 

Item I (a)

2



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF TITLE FROM THE 
CITY OF PHILADELPHIA TO VARIOUS PROPERTIES AND CONVEYANCE 
OF SUCH PROPERTIES BY THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY TO THE PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 
 

WHEREAS, Act 153 of 2012, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2101, et seq. (the "Land Bank 
Act") authorized the City of Philadelphia ("City") to create a land bank in accordance 
with the Land Bank Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City, in Bill No. 130156-A (approved December 18, 2013), 

authorized the creation of the Philadelphia Land Bank and provided for its appointment, 
powers and duties; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 16-705 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the City's 

Commissioner of Public Property to convey real property to the Philadelphia 
Redevelopment Authority ("Authority"), without consideration, for subsequent transfer to 
the Philadelphia Land Bank; and 

 
WHEREAS, under Section 2109 of Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2109(d)(3), 

a redevelopment authority, with the consent of the local governing body and without a 
redevelopment contract, may convey title to certain redevelopment authority property to a 
land bank; and 
 

WHEREAS, the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this Resolution have been 
deemed surplus property by the City and the transfer of such properties to the Authority 
for subsequent transfer to the Philadelphia Land Bank will promote the public purposes 
for which the City created the Philadelphia Land Bank.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority, that authorization is hereby given to the Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority to accept title from the City of Philadelphia to those properties identified on 
Exhibit "A," hereto, and for the conveyance and preparation, execution, acknowledgment 
and delivery of deeds to the Philadelphia Land Bank, without consideration, pursuant to 
Section 2109 of the Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. §2109(d)(3), and Chapter 16-700 of 
the Philadelphia Code. 

 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 

documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to 
the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real 
Estate, with the advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution 
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. 
 

Item I (a)

3



EXHIBIT "A" 

1st Council District Property 

2022 E. Fletcher Street 

5th Council District Properties 

2453 N. Carlisle Street 
1532 N. Marston Street 
719 Montgomery Avenue 
737 Montgomery Avenue 
739 Montgomery Avenue 
741 Montgomery Avenue 
743 Montgomery Avenue 
1433 N. Myrtlewood Street 
1454 N. Myrtlewood Street 
1428 N. Myrtlewood Street 
1443 N. Myrtlewood Street 
3013 W. York Street 
3015 W. York Street 
3108 W. York Street 
2408 N. 31st Street 
2410 N. 31st Street 
2412 N. 31st Street 

Item I (a)

4



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
                     BOARD FACTSHEET  

Meeting of  February 9 ,  2022 
Conveyance of  PRA Property  to  Phi ladelphia  Land Bank 
 
 
 
  

 

Nature of  Transaction:  The Phi ladelphia Redevelopment Author i ty ( the "PRA")  
wi l l  fac i l i tate  the conveyance of  t i t le  of  these propert ies  owned by the PRA to 
the Phi ladelphia Land Bank:   
 

•  The conveyance of  th is  property  wi l l  be for the d isposi t ion,  reuse,  and 
management by the Phi ladelphia  Land Bank.   

 

•  The PRA propert ies  l i s ted  below were approved for  conveyance to the 
Phi ladelphia  Land Bank in  co l laborat ion  with  the 5t h  Co unci l  D ist r ict  
Of f ice .  
  

 
 

PROPERTY INFORMATION:  
 

PRA Conveyance:   The PRA propert ies  attached hereto as  Exh ib it  "A" wi l l  
be  conveyed to  the Phi ladelphia Land Bank  without  considerat ion,  
pursuant to  Sect ion 2109 of  Land Bank Act ,  68 Pa.  C.S .A.  §  2109(d)(3) .  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Item I (b)

5



EXHIBIT "A" 
 
5th Council District Properties 
 
1608 N. Bailey Street 
1637 N. Bailey Street 
1639 N. Bailey Street 
1641 N. Bailey Street 
1802 N. Franklin Street 
1804 N. Franklin Street 
1613 N. Marston Street 
1003 Melon Street 
2208 E. Norris Street 
2704 W. York Street 
2708 W. York Street 
1411 N. 8th Street 
1441 N. 8th Street 
1445 N. 8th Street 
1803 N. 8th Street 
1600-16 N. 9th Street 
1618-40 N. 9th Street 
662 N. 10th Street 
664 N. 10th Street 
666 N. 10th Street 
668 N. 10th Street 
647-67 N. 10th Street 
2342 N. 27th Street 
2344 N. 27th Street 
2346 N. 27th Street 
2346 N. 27th Street 
2348 N. 27th Street 
1457 N. 30th Street 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item I (b)

6



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN PROPERTIES 
OWNED BY THE PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY TO THE 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 
 

WHEREAS, Act 153 of 2012, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2101, et seq. (the "Land Bank Act") 
authorized the City of Philadelphia ("City") to create a land bank in accordance with the Land 
Bank Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City, in Bill No. 130156-A (approved December 18, 2013), authorized 

the creation of the Philadelphia Land Bank and provided for its appointment, powers and duties; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, under Section 2109 of Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 2109(d)(3), a 

redevelopment authority, with the consent of the local governing body and without a 
redevelopment contract, may convey title to certain redevelopment authority property to a land 
bank; and 
 

WHEREAS, the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this Resolution which are owned 
by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority ("Authority") qualify for transfer from the Authority 
to the Philadelphia Land Bank as provided by Section 2109 of the Land Bank Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the transfer of the properties identified on Exhibit "A" to this Resolution to 
the Philadelphia Land Bank will promote the public purposes for which the City created the 
Philadelphia Land Bank; 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 

Authority, that authorization is hereby given to the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to 
convey title to those properties identified on Exhibit "A" hereto, to the Philadelphia Land Bank, 
and for the preparation, execution, acknowledgment and delivery of deeds to the Philadelphia Land 
Bank, without consideration, pursuant to Section 2109 of Land Bank Act, 68 Pa. C.S.A. § 
2109(d)(3), and to obtain the appropriate council action. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, the preparation, execution, and delivery of all 
documentation necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Deputy 
Executive Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 
 
 FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with 
the advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable 
to carry out its purposes and intents. 
 
 
 
  

Item I (b)

7



EXHIBIT "A" 

5th Council District Properties 

1608 N. Bailey Street 
1637 N. Bailey Street 
1639 N. Bailey Street 
1641 N. Bailey Street 
1802 N. Franklin Street 
1804 N. Franklin Street 
1613 N. Marston Street 
1003 Melon Street 
2208 E. Norris Street 
2704 W. York Street 
2708 W. York Street 
1411 N. 8th Street 
1441 N. 8th Street 
1445 N. 8th Street 
1803 N. 8th Street 
1600-16 N. 9th Street 
1618-40 N. 9th Street 
662 N. 10th Street 
664 N. 10th Street 
666 N. 10th Street 
668 N. 10th Street 
647-67 N. 10th Street
2342 N. 27th Street
2344 N. 27th Street
2346 N. 27th Street
2346 N. 27th Street
2348 N. 27th Street
1457 N. 30th Street

Item I (b)

8



BOARD FACTSHEET  
Board Meet ing of  February 9 ,  2022 
Housing Preservat ion  Loan Program 
( i ) Amendment to  Resolut ion No.  2018-56,  Adopted on
Ju ly  11,  2018,  ( i i )  Author izat ion  to  Enter  Into  an Agreement
for  Profess ional  Serv ices  with  Republ ic F i rst  Bank d/b/a
Republ ic Bank,  and ( i i i )  Author izat ion  to  Enter Into
Amendments  to  the Agreements  for Profess ional  Serv ices  with
Univest  Bank and Trust  Co.  and Clar i f i

BACKGROUND: The pro gram t i t led  "Restor e ,  Repai r ,  Renew :  P h i lade lphia  
Ne ighbo rhoo d Hom e P reserv at io n  Lo an P ro gram" ( the  "Program" )  i s  an  in i t ia t iv e  
o f  the C i ty  o f  P h i lade lphia  that  i s  being  adm inis tered by  the  P hi lade lphia  
Redeve lo pm ent  Autho r i ty  ( the  "Author i ty" ) .  The  P ro gram  i s  funded with  pro ceeds 
f ro m  o ne  o r  mo re  bonds  i ssued by  the  Autho r i ty  as  prev io us ly  autho r ized by  C i ty  
Co unc i l  B i l l  No .  170878,  which  was passed by  C ity  Co unc i l  o n No vem ber  30 ,  2017.  
The  P ro gram  a im s  to  increase  access  to  lo w- interest  lo ans  fo r  lo w- ,  mo derate- ,  
and m iddle - income C i ty  res idents  who  o wn res ident ia l  propert ies  in  need o f  
P ro gram  spec i f i c  repai rs .  

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESS I ONAL S ERVI CES  WI T H REPUBLIC  BANK:  Based o n a 
Request  fo r  P ro po sa ls  i s sued by  the  Autho r i ty  o n  December  26 ,  2017 ,  the 
Autho r i ty  so ught  respo nses  f rom  f inanc ia l  ins t i tut io ns  to  carry  o ut  the  o r ig inat ion 
and serv ic ing  o f  lo ans  under  the  P ro gram.  Autho r i ty  s ta f f  se lected Univest  Bank 
and Trust  Co .  ( "Univ est" )  and F INANTA ("FINANTA" ) .   

Pursuant  to  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-56 ,  ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2018 ,  the  Bo ard 
autho r ized,  amo ng o ther  th ings ,  Agreem ents  fo r  P ro fess io na l  Serv ices  wi th  Univ est  
and F INANTA to  ( i )  or ig inate  P ro gram  lo ans ,  ( i i )  ass ign  o r  se l l  such loans  to  the 
Autho r i ty ,  and ( i i i )  serv ice  the  Pro gram  lo ans  he ld  by  the  Autho r i ty ,  amo ng o ther  
th ings .  The Autho r ity  pay s  the  lo an pr inc ipa l ,  p lus  an o r ig inat io n  fee ,  a  serv ic ing 
fee ,  and th i rd-party  co sts .  

Pursuant  to  Reso lut ion  No .  2 018 -80 ,  ado pted o n Octo ber  10 ,  2018  (which  amended 
Reso lut io n  No .  2018-5 6  re ferenced above) ,  the Bo ard  author ized,  amo ng other  
th ings ,  to  extend the  term  o f  the  Agreements  for  P ro fess io na l  Serv ices  wi th 
Univ est  and F INANTA f ro m  three  (3 )  years  wi th  o ne  (1 )  three  (3) -year  renewal  
term  to  a  term  o f  up  to  s ix teen (16)  years .  Th is  was  due  to  the  fact  that ,  under  the 
P ro gram ,  Univ est  and F INANTA hav e  s ix  (6 )  years  to  o r ig inate P ro gram  lo ans  and 
each P ro gram  lo an wi l l  be  fo r  a  term  o f  ten  (10)  years .  

Item I (c)

9



  

F INANTA has  term inated i t s  Agreement  fo r  P ro fess io na l  Serv ices  wi th  the 
Autho r i ty .  Based o n a  Request  fo r  P ro po sa ls  i s sued by  the Author i ty  o n August  19,  
2020 ,  rev ised o n Septem ber  1 ,  2020,  the  Autho r ity  so ught  respo nses f rom 
f inanc ia l  ins t i tut io ns  to  rep lace  F INANTA to  carry  o ut  the  o r ig inat io n  and serv ic ing 
o f  lo ans  under  the P ro gram .  Autho r i ty  sta f f  se lected Republ ic  F i rs t  Bank d/ b/a  
Republ ic  Bank  ( "Republ i c  Bank"  and to gether wi th  "Univ est" ,  the "F inancia l  
I nst i tut ions") .  
 
The  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io ns  are  expected to ,  amo ng o ther  th ings ,  ( i )  o r ig inate 
P ro gram  lo ans ,  ( i i )  ass ign  o r  se l l  such lo ans  to  the  Autho r i ty ,  and ( i i i )  serv ice  the 
P ro gram  lo ans  he ld  by  the  Autho r i ty .  The  Autho r i ty  pays  the lo an pr inc ipa l ,  p lus  
an  o r ig inat io n  fee ,  a  serv ic ing  fee ,  and th i rd-party  co sts .  In  the  ev ent  o f  
de l inquency ,  the  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io ns are  respo ns ib le  for  carry ing  o ut  the 
Autho r i ty ' s  preferred lo ss  m it igat io n  s t rategy .   
 
Autho r i ty  sta f f  seeks  autho r izat io n to  enter  into  an Agreem ent  fo r  P ro fess io na l  
Serv ices  wi th  Republ ic  Bank fo r  a  term no t  to  exceed s ix teen (16)  years  o n the 
terms  set  fo rth  in  Reso lut io n  No .  2018 -56,  ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2018,  as  amended 
by  the  pro po sed amendm ents  to  Reso lut ion  No .  2018-56  as  o ut l ined be lo w and as  
pro v ided in  Exhib i t  "A,"  at tached hereto .    
 
 
AMENDMENT  T O AGREEMENT  FOR PROFESS I ONAL SERVICES  WI T H UNI VES T:  
Autho r i ty  sta f f  seeks  autho r izat io n  to  enter  into  an  Am endment  to  the  ex is t ing 
Agreement  fo r  P ro fess io na l  Serv ices  with  Univ est  o n  the  terms  set  fo rth  in  
Reso lut io n No .  2018 -5 6 ,  ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2018 ,  as  am ended by Reso lut io n  No .  
2018-80 ,  ado pted o n Octo ber  10 ,  2018 and as  further  amended by the  pro posed 
am endm ents  to  Reso lut io n No .  2018 -56 as  o ut l ined be low and as  pro v ided in 
Exh ib i t  "A,"  at tached hereto .    
 
 
AMENDMENT  T O AG REEMENT  FOR PROFESS I ONAL SERVICES  WIT H CLARI FI :   
Based o n a  Request  fo r  P ro posa ls  i s sued by  the  Autho r i ty  o n  Apr i l  10 ,  2018 ,  the 
Autho r i ty  so ught  pro po sa ls  fo r  pro gram  interm ediar ies  to  prov ide  serv ices  
inc luding  m arket ing ,  intake/ ho meowner rev iew,  f inanc ia l  co unse l ing  (and/ o r  
co unse l ing  re ferra l s ) ,  and o ther  fo rm s  o f  technica l  ass i stance to  the  homeowners 
part ic ipat ing  in  the  P ro gram .  Autho r i ty  sta f f  se lected three  pro po sa ls  o f  which  
C lar i f i  ( "C lar i f i" )  i s  the so le  rem ain ing  pro gram interm ediary  ( the "Prog ram 
I ntermediar ies" ) .  Autho r i ty  s ta f f  seeks  autho r izat io n  to  enter  into  an  Am endm ent 
to  the  ex i s t ing  Agreem ent  fo r  P ro fess io nal  Serv ices  wi th  C lar i f i  o n  the  term s  set  
fo r th  in  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-56 ,  ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2018 ,  as  am ended by 
Reso lut io n  No .  2 01 8 -8 0 ,  ado pted o n October  10 ,  2018  and as  further  am ended by 
the  pro po sed am endm ents  to  Reso lut io n No .  2018 -56 as  o ut l ined be low and as  
pro v ided in  Exhib i t  "A,"  at tached hereto .    
 
 
AMENDMENT S T O RES OLUTI ON NO.  2018-56 :  In  the  co urse o f  o perat ing the 
P ro gram ,  certa in  changes  to  the  P ro gram's  gu ide l ines  became necessary ,  which 

Item I (c)

10



changes  have  been nego t iated with  the  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io ns  and C lar i f i .  These 
changes  now requi re  an  amendm ent  to  certa in  po rt io ns  o f  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-56 ,  
ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2 01 8 .   Redl ined pro vis io ns  o ut l in ing  the  pro po sed de let io ns 
and addi t io ns  to  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-56 ,  ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2018 ,  are  attached 
hereto  as  Exh ib i t  "A."  
 

 
REQUES T :  Based o n the  abo ve  term s  and the  spec i f i c  mo di f i cat io ns  as  prov ided in  
Exh ib i t  "A,"  attached hereto ,  Autho r i ty  s ta f f  seeks  autho r izat io n  f rom  the  Bo ard 
to :  

 
1 .  Am end Reso lut io n  No .  2018 -56 ,  ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2018 ,  pursuant  t o  the  

rev is io ns  s tated abo ve  and as  pro v ided in Exh ib i t  "A,"  attached hereto .  A l l  
o ther  autho r izat io ns  co nta ined in  Reso lut io n  No .  2018 -56 ,  adopted o n Ju ly  
11 ,  2018 ,  sha l l  remain  unchanged and co nt inue  in  fu l l  fo rce  and e f fect .  
 
 

2 .  Nego t iate ,  execute ,  and de l iv ery  o f  an Agreem ent  fo r  P ro fess iona l  Serv ices  
by  and between t he Autho r i ty  and Republ ic  Bank  fo r  the  or ig inat io n and 
serv ic ing  o f  lo ans  under  the  P ro gram  pursuant  to  the  terms  of  Reso lut ion 
No .  2018-56 ,  ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2018,  as  am ended by  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-
80 ,  ado pted o n Octo ber  10 ,  2018 ,  and as  fur ther  am ended hereby .   
 

3 .  Nego t iate ,  execute  and de l iv ery  o f  an  Amendm ent to  the  ex i s t ing  Agreement 
fo r  P ro fess io na l  Serv ices  wi th  Univ est ,  pursuant  to  the  term s  of  Reso lut io n 
No .  2018-56 ,  ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2018,  as  am ended by  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-
80 ,  ado pted o n Octo ber  10 ,  2018 ,  and as  further  am ended hereby .  
 

4 .  Nego t iate ,  execute  and de l iv ery  o f  an  Amendm ent to  the  ex i s t ing  Agreement 
fo r  P ro fess io na l  Serv ices  wi th  C lar i f i ,  pursuant  to  the  term s  of  Reso lut io n 
No .  2018-56 ,  ado pted o n Ju ly  11 ,  2018,  as  am ended by  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-
80 ,  ado pted o n Octo ber  10 ,  2018 ,  and as  further  am ended hereby .  

 
 
P repared by :    S tev e  Cusano 
Rev iewed by :  Ryan Harmo n 
 
 
 
 
 

Item I (c)

11



  

EXHI BI T  "A"  
 
The  po rt io ns be low with  a  s t r ikethro ugh represent  a  de let io n,  and the  under l ined 
po rt io ns  represent  an addi t io n,  to  the  text  fo und in  Reso lut io n  No .  2018 -56:     
 
•  Autho r i ty  s ta f f  pro po ses  that  the  ro les  and respo ns ib i l i t ies  o f  the F inanc ia l  

Inst i tut io ns  in  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-56  be am ended as  fo l lows:   
 

1 .  Accept  lo an appl i cat io ns  f rom  hom eo wners  (ass i s ted by  P ro gram 
Intermediar ies  (as  def ined be low) ;  

2 .  Manual ly  underwr i te  lo ans  and pro v ide  le t ters  o f  pre -appro v a l  to  
ho meowners;  

3 .  Clo se  lo ans  wi th  ho meowners  and ass ign  or  se l l  such lo ans  to  the  Autho r i ty  
d i rect ly  fo l lo wing  lo an c lo s ing;  

4 .  Rece iv e  and send wired funds  to  and f rom  the  Autho r ity ;  
5 .  Make pro gress  payments  to  ( fo r  sm al ler  pro jects  a  s ing le  lum p-sum  paym ent 

m ay be appro pr iate ) .  Lo an funds  wi l l  be rem it ted  d i rect ly  f rom  the  F inanc ia l  
Inst i tut io ns  wi l l  remit  lo an funds  to  the  hom eowner  who  wi l l  pay  the 
co ntracto r  (un less  the  hom eo wner  autho r izes  paym ent  d i rect ly  to  the 
co ntracto r)  ( rather  than to  the  ho meowner)  based o n an  agreed-upo n sco pe 
o f  wo rk  and pro gress  schedule .  A l l  inv o ices  wi l l  be  rev iewed and appro v ed 
by  the  ho meowner and P ro gram Intermediar ies .  D epending  o n the  sco pe o f  
wo rk,  payment  schedules  may  inc lude an  adv ance  o f  up to  50% o f  the co st  
o f  the to ta l  co ntracted wo rktwo  (2 )  pro gress  paym ents .  

6 .  Serv ice  lo ans;   
7 .  P erfo rm  Co o rdinate  inspect io ns o f  the pro pert ies  o n  which the  lo an funds 

are  be ing  used;  
8 .  Meet  m o nthly  repo rt ing  requi rements  as  determ ined by  the Autho r i ty ;  and 
9 .  Carry  o ut  the  Author i ty ' s  preferred lo ss  m it igat io n  st rategy ,  i f  necessary .   

 
•  Autho r i ty  s ta f f  pro po ses  that  the  term s  o n which  F inanc ia l  Ins t i tut io ns  m ake 

lo ans  to  e l ig ib le  hom eo wners  in  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-56  be  am ended as  
fo l lows:  

 
-  Loan Amount :  $2 ,500 -  $ 24 ,99950,000 
-  Inter est  Rate :  3 .00% f ixed fo r  the term  o f  the  lo an;  
-  Minimum Cr edit  S core :  580 
-  Maximum Loan to  Value  (LTV) :  105% o f  post - rehab v a lue—based o n interna l  

desk  rev iew v a luat ion  o r  a  th i rd-party  appra isa l  i f  i s sues  are  ident i f ied  wi th 
the  desk  rev iew v a luat io n   —m ay be  based o n interna l  desk  rev iew v a luat ion 
o r  Bro ker  Pro perty  Opin io n ( "BPO" )  o f  v a lue  

-  Maximum Debt - to- Income (D T I ) :  43% 
-  Col later a l :  Secured up to  seco nd-po s i t ion  m o rtgage ,  but  m ay  be  a  th i rd 

po s i t io n  o n a  case-by-case bas i s  when borro wer  rece iv ed f inanc ing  f rom  a 
publ ic  ent i ty  such as  HUD  o r  P HFA,  am o ng o thers  

-  Maximum Ter m:  Ten  (1 0)  years  
-  Under wr i t ing:  Must  be  m anual  and wi l l  m ay  be subject  to  ad justm ents  based 

o n the per form ance  of  the  po rt fo l io   

Item I (c)

12



-  D efaul t :  In  ev ent  o f  de l inquency ,  F inancia l  Inst i tut io ns  m ust  co nt inue to 
serv ice  the  lo an unt i l  the  Autho r i ty ' s  preferred lo ss  m it igat io n s t rategy  has  
been fu l ly  exhausted 

 
•  Autho r i ty  sta f f  pro poses  that  the  addi t io na l  term s  between the  Autho r i ty  and 

F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io ns in  Reso lut io n  No .  2018-56  be  amended as  fo l lows:  
 

o  Agree  to  the  ass ignm ent or  purchase  o f  each loan by  the 
Autho r i ty imm ediate ly  fo l lo wing  o r ig inat io n;  

o  Wire  the  appro pr iate  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut ion  the  pr inc ipa l  payment  fo r  each 
lo an at  such date  agreed to  by  the Autho r i ty  and the F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io n 
upo n ass ignm ent  o r  purchase  o f  the  loanc lo s ing  o r  with in  f i f teen (15)  
bus iness  days  fo l lo wing  c lo s ing;  

o  P rov ide a  o ne-t im e fee  for  o r ig inat io n  to  the  respect iv e  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io n 
in  the  am o unt  o f  three  hundred twenty - f iv e  do l lars  ($32500.00)  per  c lo sed 
lo an;  

o  P rov ide  a  m o nthly  fee  fo r  serv ic ing  to  the respect iv e  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io n  in 
the  am o unt  o f  Ten Dol lars  ($10 .00)  per  lo an per  mo nth ($10/ lo an/ mo nth) ;  

o  P rov ide  payment  to  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut ions  fo r  the  fo l lo wing  necessary 
th i rd-party  co sts  whether  the lo an c lo ses  or  no t:  

o  a  o ne-t im e fee  fo r  v aluat io n  to  the  respect iv e  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io n  in  
the  am o unt  o f  o ne-Hundred Sev enty -F ive  D o l lars  ($75100.00) ;  

o  a  o ne-t im e fee  fo r  t i t le  search to  the respect ive  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut ion 
in  the  am o unt  o f  One Hundred F i f ty  D o l lars  ($150 .00) ;  

o  a  o ne-t ime f loo d insurance  fee  in  the  am ount  o f  twe lv e do l lars  ($12) ;  
o  a  o ne-t im e hom e v aluat io n  fee in  the  am o unt  o f  th i rteen do l lars  

($13) ;  
  In  cases  where a  fu l l  appra isa l  i s  necessary ,  a  o ne-t ime 

appra isa l  fee  o f  Fo ur  Hundred and Twenty-F iv e  D o l lars  ($425);  
o  two (2)  th i rd-party  inspect io ns  in  the  amount  o f  Fo ur  Hundred D o l lars 

($ 40 0 .00)  fo r  each inspect io n per  lo an,  w i th  the  a l lo wance  fo r  an 
addi t io na l  Fo ur Hundred Do l lars  ($400 .00)  per  any addi t io na l  
inspect io ns that  m ay  be  requi red o n larger  hom e repa i r  pro jects ;  

o  P rov ide  a  o ne-t ime reco rd ing  fee  to  the  respect iv e  F inanc ia l  
Inst i tut io n  pursuant  to  current  co unty  fee  schedules  (current ly  Two 
Hundred Twenty -Sev en D o l lars  ($227 .00)  in  P h i lade lphia) ;  

o  P rov ide  a  o ne-t im e credi t  repo rt  fee  o f  Twenty-F iv e  D o l lars  ($25 .00)  
to  the  respect iv e F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io n;  

o  The  F inanc ia l  Inst i tut io n  m ay no t  charge any  o ther  fees  o r  passthro ugh any 
o ther  costs  to  the  hom eo wner .  

 
•  Autho r i ty  sta f f  pro po ses  that  com pensat io n  to  the  P ro ject  Intermediar ies  in  

Reso lut io n  No .  2018 -5 6  be  am ended as  fo l lo ws:  
 

•  The  P ro gram  with  respect  to  P ro gram Interm ediar ies  i s  des igned based o n a  fee 
fo r  serv ice  m o del .  The  P ro gram Intermediar ies  hav e agreed to  a  fee fo r 
serv ices  in  the amount  o f  One  Tho usand F iv e Hundred Do l lars  ($1 ,500)  per  
c lo sed lo an.  P aym ent  wi l l  be  m ade by  the  Autho r i ty  to  the P ro gram 

Item I (c)

13



  

Intermediar ies  o n  a  quarter ly  bas i s .  In  addi t io n,  the  P ro gram Intermediar ies  
wi l l  be  pro v ided the  fo l lowing:    

 
o  $500  at  o ne  year  fo l lo wing  c lo s ing;  
o  $600  per  home assessm ent;  
o  $400  per  f ina l  assessm ent 
o  $ 400  fo r  any  addi t io na l  inspect io n  (Autho r ity  appro v a l  requi red) ;  
o  $350  lo an readiness  serv ices  fo r  bo rro wers  who  m ay  requi re  addi t io na l  

ass i s tance;  and 
o  $500 fo r  Ho me Repair  101 wo rksho ps  (no t  to  exceed 24 in  any ca lendar 

year  un less  rece iv ing  Autho r i ty  approv a l ) .   
 
 

Item I (c)

14



RESOLUTION NO. 
(Further Amending Resolution No. 2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018) 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING: (1) AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
WITH REPUBLIC FIRST BANK D/B/A REPUBLIC BANK, (2) AMENDMENT TO 
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH UNIVEST BANK AND TRUST 
CO., (3) AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH 
CLARIFI, AND (4) AMENDMENT TO RESOLUTION NO. 2018-56, ADOPTED ON JULY 
11, 2018, WITH RESPECT TO THE AGREEMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS UNDER THE PROGRAM TITLED "RESTORE, 
REPAIR, RENEW: PHILADELPHIA NEIGHBORHOOD HOME PRESERVATION LOAN 
PROGRAM" 
 

WHEREAS, the program titled "Restore, Repair, Renew: Philadelphia Neighborhood 
Home Preservation Loan Program" (the "Program") is an initiative of the City of Philadelphia 
(the "City") that will be administered by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority (the 
"Authority"); 

 
WHEREAS, the Program will be funded with proceeds from one or more bonds issued 

by the Authority as previously authorized by City Council Bill No. 170878, which was passed by 
City Council on November 30, 2017 (the "Program Ordinance"); 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018, the Board 

authorized, among other things, Agreements for Professional Services with Univest Bank and Trust 
Co. ("Univest") and FINANTA ("FINANTA") to carry out origination and servicing of Program 
loans and Agreements for Professional Services with the Program Intermediaries of which Clarifi is 
the sole remaining Program Intermediary to provide technical assistance to the Program 
participants;   
 

WHEREAS, FINANTA has terminated its Agreement for Professional Services with the 
Authority; 

 
WHEREAS, based on a Request for Proposals issued by the Authority on August 19, 2020,  

revised on September 1, 2020, the Authority sought responses from financial institutions to replace 
FINANTA to carry out origination and servicing of Program loans;  

 
WHEREAS, Authority staff selected Republic First Bank d/b/a Republic Bank ("Republic 

Bank" and together with "Univest", the "Financial Institutions") based on their responsiveness to 
the Request for Proposals and ability to carry out the goals of the Program; 

 
WHEREAS, the Financial Institutions will, among other things, originate loans, and assign 

or sell such loans to the Authority and the Authority will pay the Financial institutions the loan 
principal, plus an origination fee and a servicing fee; 

 

Item I (c)

15



WHEREAS, the Financial Institutions will then become the servicer of the loans held by 
the Authority and, in the event of delinquency, the Financial Institutions will be responsible for 
carrying out the Authority's preferred loss mitigation strategy; 

 
WHEREAS, in the course of operating the Program certain changes to the Program's 

guidelines and compensation became necessary, which changes have been negotiated with the 
Financial Institutions and Clarifi and these changes now require an amendment to certain portions 
of Resolution No. 2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018; 
 
 WHEREAS, based on the above and the terms set forth in the attached Fact Sheet, 
Authority staff seeks authorization from the Board to: 
 

1. Negotiate, execute, and deliver an Agreement for Professional Services by and between the 
Authority and Republic Bank for the origination and servicing of loans under the Program 
pursuant to the terms of Resolution No. 2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018, as amended by 
Resolution No. 2018-80, adopted on October 10, 2018, and as further amended hereby. 
 

2. Negotiate, execute and deliver an Amendment to the existing Agreement for Professional 
Services by and between the Authority and Univest, pursuant to the terms of Resolution No. 
2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018, as amended by Resolution No. 2018-80, adopted on 
October 10, 2018, and as further amended hereby. 
 

3. Negotiate, execute and deliver an Amendment to the existing Agreement for Professional 
Services by and between the Authority and Clarifi, pursuant to the terms of Resolution No. 
2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018, as amended by Resolution No. 2018-80, adopted on 
October 10, 2018, and as further amended hereby. 
 

4. Amend Resolution No. 2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018, and the Board Fact Sheet 
accompanying such Resolution, pursuant to this Resolution and the attached Fact Sheet.  

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE PHILADELPHIA 
REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, that: 
 

1. Authority staff is authorized to negotiate, execute, and delivery a Professional Services 
Agreement by and between the Authority and Republic Bank for the origination and 
servicing of loans under the Program pursuant to the terms of Resolution No. 2018-56, 
adopted on July 11, 2018, as amended by Resolution No. 2018-80, adopted on October 
10, 2018, and as further amended hereby; and 
 

2. Authority staff is authorized to negotiate, execute and deliver an Amendment to the 
existing Agreement for Professional Services by and between the Authority and Univest, 
pursuant to the terms of Resolution No. 2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018, as amended 
by Resolution No. 2018-80, adopted on October 10, 2018, and as further amended 
hereby; and 
 

Item I (c)

16



3. Authority staff is authorized to negotiate, execute and deliver an Amendment to the 
existing Agreement for Professional Services by and between the Authority and Clarifi, 
pursuant to the terms of Resolution No. 2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018, as amended 
by Resolution No. 2018-80, adopted on October 10, 2018, and as further amended 
hereby; and 
 

4. Resolution No. 2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018, and the Board Fact Sheet 
accompanying such Resolution, is hereby amended to provide for the proposed changes 
to the Program's guidelines as outlined above and in the attached Fact Sheet; and 
 

5. All other authorizations contained in Resolution No. 2018-56, adopted on July 11, 2018 
as amended by Resolution No. 2018-80, adopted on October 10, 2018, shall remain 
unchanged and continue in full force and effect.  

 
FURTHER AUTHORIZING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate is 

hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to perform any and all such acts and things, and to 
execute, acknowledge, deliver, file, or record in any appropriate public offices, all agreements, 
documents, instruments and certifications as may be necessary or desirable in connection with 
accomplishing the purpose of this Resolution. 
  
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the 
advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to this Resolution necessary or desirable to 
carry out its purposes and intents. 
 
 
 

Item I (c)

17



  
BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  February 9 ,  2022 
Gal lery  Mal l  Project  
F i rst  Amendment  to L icense Agreement with  Keystone  
Ph i ladelphia  Propert ies ,  L .P . ,  for  the Pedestr ian  Br idge Located  
Between 10t h  and 11 t h  Streets  Above F i lbert  Street   
 

 
NAME OF L ICENS EE:  Keysto ne  P hi lade lphia  P ro pert ies ,  L .P . ,  a  P ennsy lv ania  l im i ted 
partnersh ip  ( "Keystone" )  
 

Nature  of  T ransac t ion:   Autho r izat io n  fo r  the  P hi lade lphia  Redeve lo pm ent 
Autho r i ty  ("Authori ty" )  to  enter  into  a  F i rs t  Am endm ent  to  L icense  Agreem ent 
between the  Autho r i ty  and Keysto ne  to  extend the term o f  that  certa in L icense 
Agreement  dated as  o f  March 19 ,  2021,  e f fect iv e  as  o f  March 26 ,  2021  ( the 
"L ic ense  Agreement") ,  whereby  Autho r i ty  l i censed to  Keysto ne  the  use  o f  that  
certa in  pedestr ian  br idge  lo cated between 10 t h  and 11 t h  S t reets  abov e  F i lbert 
St reet  ( the "Pedestr ian Br idge" ) .   The  current  term  o f  the  L icense  Agreement 
expi res  o n  March 2 6 ,  2 022 .  
 

 
F I RS T  AMENDMENT TO L ICENS E AGREEMENT :  

 
Bac kground:  P R  Ga l lery  I  L im ited P artnersh ip  ( "PR Gal lery  I" ) ,  as  tenant ,  and 
the  Autho r i ty ,  as  landlo rd,  entered into  that  certa in Amended and Restated 
Lease and Redeve lo pm ent Agreem ent  dated No vem ber  18 ,  2015,  e f fect ive  as  of 
D ecem ber  22 ,  2015 ,  and reco rded o n Decem ber  23,  2015 ,  in  the  P hi lade lphia  
D epartm ent  o f  Reco rds  as  Do cum ent No .  53003345 ("Gal lery  I  Lease" ) ,  w i th 
respect  to  833,  901 and 905  Market  St reet ,  P h i lade lphia ,  P A ("Gal lery  I" ) .  
 
Keysto ne,  as  tenant ,  and the  Autho r i ty ,  as  landlo rd,  entered into  that  certa in 
Am ended and Restated Lease and Redev elo pment  Agreem ent dated No v em ber 
18 ,  2015 ,  e f fect ive  as  o f  D ecem ber  22,  2015 ,  and reco rded on D ecem ber  23 , 
2015 ,  in  the  P hi lade lphia  D epartm ent  o f  Reco rds  as  Do cum ent  No .  53003346 
("Gal lery  I I  Lease" ) ,  w i th  respect  to  1001-1019  Market  St reet ,  P h i lade lphia ,  P A 
( "Gal lery  I I " ) .  
 
Keysto ne,  as  tenant ,  and the  Autho r i ty ,  as  landlo rd,  entered into  that  certa in 
Am ended and Restated Lease and Redev elo pment  Agreem ent dated No v em ber 
18 ,  2015 ,  e f fect ive  as  o f  D ecem ber  22,  2015 ,  and reco rded on D ecem ber  23 , 
2015 ,  in  the  P hi lade lphia  D epartm ent  o f  Reco rds  as  Do cum ent  No .  53003347 
(" JCP  Lease" ) ,  w i th  respect  to  1025 Market  St reet ,  P h i lade lphia ,  P A (" JCP 
Bui lding " ) .   
 
Ga l lery  I ,  Ga l lery  I I  and the  JCP  Bui ld ing  are  co l lect iv e ly  re ferred to  here in  as  
the  "G al l ery  Mal l  Premi ses ."   The  Ga l lery  I  Lease ,  Ga l lery  I I  Lease,  and JCP 

Item I (d)

18



  

Bu i ld ing  Lease  are  co l lect ive ly  re ferred to  here in  as  the  "Gal lery  Leases . "  
 
On Septem ber 26 ,  20 17 ,  pursuant  to  Reso lut io n  No .  2017-64 ,  ado pted on 
Septem ber  13 ,  2017,  the  Autho r i ty  and the  Tenants  entered into  a  F i rs t  
Am endm ent  to  Am ended and Restated Lease  and Redev e lo pment  Agreem ent  
( "F i rs t  Amendment" )  w i th  respect  to  each o f  the  Ga l lery  Leases  to  mo di fy  the 
Ga l lery  Leases  to  pro v ide that ,  fo l lo wing  the  i ssuance  o f  a  Cert i f i cate  o f  
Com plet io n  (as  def ined in  the  Ga l lery  L eases) ,  Tenants  m ay  a l so  issue  a  
purchase  no t ice  to  the  Autho r i ty  o bl igat ing  the Autho r ity  to  t ransfer  the 
Ga l lery  Mal l  P rem ises  to  Tenants .  
 
On D ecem ber  1 7 ,  2020 ,  a  Cert i f i cate  o f  Com plet io n  was  i ssued by  the  Autho r i ty  
cert i fy ing that  the  dev e lo pment  o f  the Ga l lery  Mal l  P rem ises  was  com pleted in 
acco rdance  with  the Ga l lery  Leases ,  as  amended.   P ursuant  to  the  term s  o f  the 
Ga l lery  Leases ,  as  amended,  the  Tenants  exerc i sed  the i r  purchase  not ice  r ights 
o n  Decem ber  23 ,  2020 ,  which  autho r ized  the  Tenants  to  purchase  the  Ga l lery 
Mal l  P rem ises  in  accordance  wi th  the  terms  o f  Exh ib i t  31  to  the Ga l lery  Leases .   
P ursuant  to  a  Fee S im ple  D eed dated March 24,  2021 ,  the  Autho r i ty  t ransferred 
Ga l lery  I  to  PR  Ga l lery  I .   P ursuant  to  a  Fee  S im ple  D eed dated March 24 ,  2021 ,  
the  Autho r ity  t ransferred Ga l lery  I I  and the  JCP  Bui ld ing  to  Keysto ne.    
 
 
Pedestr i an B r i dg e:  The  P edestr ian  Br idge  that  serv ices  Ga l lery  I I  was  not  
t ransferred to  Keystone  as  part  o f  the fee t ransfer  o f  the Ga l lery  Mal l  P rem ises  
due  to  the fact  that  Parametr ic  Garage Assoc iates  ( "PGA" )  was prev io us ly 
granted a  no n-exc lus iv e  easem ent  to  use  the  Pedest r ian  Br idge  by  the 
Autho r i ty  pursuant  to  that  certa in  Seco nd Am ended and Restated P ark ing 
Garage  D ev e lo pment Agreem ent and Lease  between the  Autho r i ty  and P GA 
dated January  30 ,  2012 (e f fect iv e  January  31 ,  2012)  ( "PGA Lease" ) .   P GA's  no n-
exc lus ive  easem ent  to  use  the  pedest r ian  br idge  expires  o n  Decem ber 31 ,  2051 ,  
which  i s  the  date the  P GA Lease  expi res .  
 
The  L icense Agreement  was executed by  the  Autho r ity  and Keysto ne which gave 
a  no n-exc lus ive  l i cense  to  use  the  P edestr ian  Br idge  fo r  the  term  o f  the  L icense 
Agreement ,  which  expi res  o n  March 26 ,  2022 .   D ue  to  the  t im ing  in  which  the 
Autho r i ty  was  asked to  t ransfer  the Ga l lery  Mal l  P rem ises ,  s taf f  pro v ided and 
Keysto ne  accepted the  L icense  Agreem ent which  prov ided a  short - term  (o ne  (1 )  
year )  l i cense  fo r  the  P edest r ian  Br idge  which  d id  no t  requi re  Bo ard  
autho r izat io n.  
 
 
Request :  Autho r ity  sta f f  no w seeks  Bo ard  autho r izat io n to  enter  into  a  F i rs t  
Am endm ent  to  L icense  Agreem ent  o n the  term s and co ndi t io ns  set  fo rth  be low:  
 

1 .  The  term o f  the L icense  Agreem ent  wi l l  be  extended fo r  a  per io d  o f  f i ve  
(5 )  years ,  to  exp i re  on  Apr i l  1 ,  2027 .   P rov ided that  Keysto ne  i s  not  then 
in  defaul t  under  the  L icense  Agreem ent ,  as  am ended,  and unless  
o therwise  term inated in  acco rdance  with  the  term s  o f  the  L icense 

Item I (d)

19



Agreement ,  the  L icense  Agreem ent  sha l l  auto mat ica l ly  renew o n a  f iv e  
(5 )  year  bas i s  un less  e i ther  party  prov ides wr i t ten  no t ice  to  the  other  of  
i t s  intent  no t  to  renew at  least  n inety  (90)  days  pr io r  the then-current  
exp i rat io n  date .  Each renewal  of  the L icense  Agreement  sha l l  be  o n the 
sam e term s  and co ndi t io ns  as  set  fo r th  in  the  L icense  Agreement  unless  
o therwise  m utua l ly  agreed to  in  wr i t ing  by  the  part ies .  
 

2 .  As  com pensat io n  fo r  the  extens io n o f  the  term  o f  the  L icense  Agreem ent ,  
L i censee  agrees to  pay  the  Autho r i ty  the amo unt  o f  One  Do l lar  ($1 .00)  
upo n execut io n.  

 
3 .  Unless  spec i f i ca l ly  m o di f ied  here in ,  a l l  o ther  terms,  r ights  and 

o bl igat io ns set  forth in  the  L icense  Agreement  sha l l  rem ain  unchanged 
and co nt inue  in ful l  fo rce and e f fect ,  inc luding  tho se obl igat io ns  
requi r ing  Keysto ne  to  ( i )  m ainta in  and repa i r  the  no n-st ructural  po rt io ns 
o f  the  Pedestr ian  Br idge ,  ( i i )  indem ni fy  the  Autho r i ty  fo r  c la ims  re lated 
to  the  P edestr ian  Br idge ,  and ( i i i )  insure  aga inst  c la im s  o r  lo sses  re lated 
to  the  P edestr ian  Br idge .   
 

 
COMMENT S OR OT HER CONDI TI ONS : I f  appro ved by  the Autho ri ty  Bo ard,  a  request 
to  C i ty  Co unc i l  w i l l  be  subm it ted seek ing  autho r izat io n  o f  the  F i rs t  Am endm ent  to  
L icense Agreem ent .  

 
 

 
P ro po sed Reso lut io n  at tached.   
 
 
P repared by :   Ryan Harm o n  

Item I (d)

20



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO LICENSE AGREEMENT 
WITH KEYSTONE PHILADELPHIA PROPERTIES, L.P., FOR THE PEDESTRIAN 
BRIDGE LOCATED BETWEEN 10TH AND 11TH STREETS ABOVE FILBERT 
STREET  
 
 WHEREAS, as part of the development and subsequent fee transfer of 833, 901 and 905 
Market Street (collectively, "Gallery I"), 1001-1019 Market Street (collectively, "Gallery II"), 
and 1025 Market Street (the "JCP Building") (Gallery I, Gallery II and the JCP Building, 
together, the "Gallery Mall Premises"), the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority 
("Authority") and Keystone Philadelphia Properties, LP ("Keystone") entered into that certain 
License Agreement dated as of March 19, 2021, effective as of March 26, 2021 (the "License 
Agreement"), whereby Authority licensed to Keystone the use of that certain pedestrian bridge 
located between 10th and 11th Streets above Filbert Street (the "Pedestrian Bridge").  
 

WHEREAS, the License Agreement gave a non-exclusive license to use the Pedestrian 
Bridge for the term of the License Agreement, which expires on March 26, 2022. 
 
 WHEREAS, Authority staff now seeks Board authorization to enter into a First 
Amendment to License Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth below: 
 

1. The term of the License Agreement will be extended for a period of five 
(5) years, to expire on April 1, 2027.  Provided that Keystone is not then in 
default under the License Agreement, as amended, and unless otherwise 
terminated in accordance with the terms of the License Agreement, the License 
Agreement shall automatically renew on a five (5) year basis unless either party 
provides written notice to the other of its intent not to renew at least ninety (90) 
days prior the then-current expiration date. Each renewal of the License 
Agreement shall be on the same terms and conditions as set forth in the License 
Agreement unless otherwise mutually agreed to in writing by the parties. 
 
2. As compensation for the extension of the term of the License Agreement, 
Licensee agrees to pay the Authority the amount of One Dollar ($1.00) upon 
execution. 
 
3. Unless specifically modified herein, all other terms, rights and obligations 
set forth in the License Agreement shall remain unchanged and continue in full 
force and effect, including, but not limited to, those obligations requiring 
Keystone to (i) maintain and repair the non-structural portions of the Pedestrian 
Bridge, (ii) indemnify the Authority for claims related to the Pedestrian Bridge, 
and (iii) insure against claims or losses related to the Pedestrian Bridge. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Philadelphia Redevelopment 

Authority that the Authority is authorized to negotiate and execute a First Amendment to License 
Agreement for the Pedestrian Bridge on the terms and conditions set forth above and in the 

Item I (d)

21



attached Fact Sheet, and to seek appropriate City Council authorization for such First 
Amendment to License Agreement. 

FURTHER RESOLVING, the preparation, execution and delivery of all documentation 
necessary to carry out the foregoing in form and substance acceptable to the Deputy Executive 
Director of Real Estate and General Counsel. 

FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the 
advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to 
carry out its purposes and intents.  

Item I (d)

22



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
BOARD FACTSHEET  
Meeting of  February 9 ,  2022 
Select ion  of  Redeveloper through a Redevelopment Agreement  
and Ground Lease Agreement 
614-26 S .  13t h  Street  inc luding 1306-10 Kater  Street  and 1309- 
13  Bainbr idge Street  

 
NAME OF DEVELOPER/ APPLICANT :  624  S .  13TH STREET L .L .C .  
 

Nature  of  Transac t ion:  Se lect io n  o f  624  S .  13TH STREET  L .L .C .  ("Redev eloper" ) ,  
as  redev e lo per ,  pro po s ing  to  dev e lo p the pro perty  lo cated at  614 -26  S .  13th 
St reet ,  inc luding  1306 -10  Kater  St reet  and 1309-13  Ba inbr idge  St reet  
( co l lect ive ly ,  the  "Premises" ) ,  as  a  three  (3)  s to ry  bui ld ing ,  to ta l ing  33 ,000  gro ss  
square  feet ,  which  wi l l  inc lude  fo rty - f iv e  (45)  apartments  –  the  current  uni t  m ix  
be ing  twelve  (12)  s tudio  uni t s ,  twenty- f ive  (25)  o ne-bedroo m  uni ts ,  and e ight  
(8 )  two -bedroom  uni ts  ( the  "Proj ec t" ) .   
 
Redeve lo per  sha l l  cont inuo us ly  use  the  P rem ises  fo r  purpo ses o f  co nst ruct ing ,  
o perat ing and m ainta in ing  the  P ro ject ,  of  which  a  m in im um of  two (2)  studio  
uni t s ,  n ine  (9 )  o ne-bedro om  uni ts ,  and three  (3 )  two -bedro om  uni ts  ( the 
"Affordable  Uni ts" )  sha l l  be  ( i )  leased/ rest r i c ted to  subtenants  wi th  ho useho ld 
inco mes no t  to  exceed s ix ty  percent  (60%)  o f  the  area  median incom e ("AMI " )  as  
determ ined by  the  Uni ted States  D epartm ent  o f  Ho us ing  and Urban D ev e lo pment 
( "HUD" ) ,  and ( i i )  sha l l  be rented at  lev e ls  that  are  a f fo rdable  to  ho useho lds  at  
s i x ty  percent  (60%)  of  AMI ,  based o n such ho useho lds  spending  no m o re  than 
th i r ty  percent  (30%) o f  the i r  ad justed gro ss  incom e o n ho us ing  co sts .  
 
In  addi t io n  to  the apartment  bui ld ing ,  R edev e lo per expects  to  use  a  po rt io n o f 
the  o pen area  requi red by  the  zo ning  co de  to  co nst ruct  a  publ i c  park let  a lo ng 
13th St reet .  The P ro ject  w i l l  a l so  hav e b ike  s torage ,  a  package  ro om , a  green 
ro o f  that  wi l l  a id  in  the  C i ty  of  P h i lade lphia 's  ( the  "Ci ty" )  e f fo rt  to  e f fect iv e ly  
m anage s to rm  water,  and a  ro o f  deck  fo r  a l l  res idents .  The P ro ject  w i l l  be 
serv iced by  an  e levato r  and a l l  the  apartments  wi l l  be  o ut f i t ted  wi th  a  
washer/ dryer ,  s ta in less  s tee l  appl iances ,  sto ne  co unter  to ps  and o ther  f in i shes 
co ns is tent  wi th  m arket  rate  dev e lo pments  in  the  imm ediate  v ic in i ty .   
 
To  e f fectuate  co nstruct io n  o f  the  P ro ject  and in  an  e f fort  to  m ainta in 
a f fo rdabi l i ty  fo r  a  s ign i f i cant  per io d  of  t ime,  P h i lade lphia  Redev e lo pment 
Autho r i ty  ( "Author i ty " )  s ta f f  and Redeve lo per have  nego t iated a  pro po sed 
Gro und Lease Agreem ent ( "Ground Lease" )  where in  Redev e lo per  wi l l  lease  the 
P rem ises  f rom  the  Autho r i ty  fo r  a  term  of  n inety -n ine  (99)  years .   D ur ing  the 
ent i rety  o f  the  term  of  the pro po sed Gro und Lease ,  Redev e lo per wi l l  be requi red 
to  m ainta in  the  a f fo rdabi l i ty  requi rem ents  as  set  fo rth  abo ve.  
 
 

Item II

23



   

Spec i f i ca l ly ,  Author i ty  s ta f f  seeks  Bo ard  approv a l  o f  ( i )  a  Redeve lo pm ent 
Agreement  between the  Autho r i ty  and Redev e lo per  set t ing  fo rth  the 
dev e lo pment  o bl igat io ns  re lat iv e  to  the  Pro ject ,  and ( i i )  the  Gro und Lease  for  
the  P rem ises  between the  Autho r i ty ,  as  landlo rd,  and Redeve lo per ,  as  tenant ,  
pro v id ing  fo r  the  use ,  o perat io n  and m aintenance  o f  the P rem ises  and 
m aintenance  o f  the  P ro ject  to  be  co nst ructed pursuant  to  the Redeve lo pm ent 
Agreement .  
 
The fol lowing is  a summary of the material  terms of the proposed Redevelopment 
Agreement and proposed Ground Lease :  
 
 Term: The term of the proposed Ground Lease is  ninety-nine (99) years  
commencing on the Sett lement Date.  
 

Rent:  During the f i rst  year of the Term, the "Fixed Minimum Rent" shal l  be in  
the annual amount of Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000),  and payable in monthly  
instal lments  of One Thousand Six  Hundred Sixty-Six  Dollars  and Sixty-Seven Cents  
($1,666.67).   Thereafter,  beginning with the second (2nd) year  of the Term,  the 
Fixed Minimum Rent shal l  be adjusted annually  by two and eighteen hundredths 
percent (2 .18%) above the Fixed Minimum Rent from the pr ior year for each 
subsequent year  throughout the Term.  Notwithstanding the foregoing,  within 
ninety (90) days fol lowing the issuance of a Certif icate of Occupancy for the 
Premises,  Redeveloper shall  provide to the Authority and shal l  cause each pr ime 
contractor to provide or submit to the Authority,  a  Project cost cert if icat ion 
performed by one or more independent,  third-party,  cert if ied public  accountants  
establ ishing the actual  total  construct ion costs incurred and paid by Redeveloper  
and each pr ime contractor in connection with the construct ion of the Project.   In  
the event  the Project cost cert i f icat ion does not support the Fixed Minimum Rent 
then payable by Redeveloper to the Authority,  the Authority may, in its  sole  
discret ion and in accordance with the costs set forth in  the Project cost  
cert if ication, increase the Fixed Minimum Rent payable to the Authority on an 
annual basis to an amount not to exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000).   In the 
event there is  an increase to the Fixed Minimum Rent amount fol lowing the 
submission of  the Project cost cert if ication as outl ined above, the increased Fixed 
Minimum Rent shal l  continue to be adjusted annual ly  by two and eighteen 
hundredths percent  (2 .18%) above the F ixed Minimum Rent from the prior year for 
each subsequent year throughout the Term. 
 
 Net Lease:  The proposed Ground Lease is  a "triple net lease," and the Authority 
is  not responsible for any costs,  expenses or  charges thereunder.  
 
 Non-Discrimination in Use or Construction of Premises:  The proposed Ground 
Lease inc ludes the same obligations as  included in the Authority 's  typical  
redevelopment agreement which require non-discr iminat ion in use and 
construct ion of the Project.  
 
 Minority,  Disadvantaged and Female Owned Business Enterprise Requirements.   
The proposed Redevelopment Agreement shal l  include the same obligations as 

Item II

24



 
  
  
 
 
   

included in the Authority's  typical  redevelopment agreement which encourage fair  
and non-discriminatory business and employment pract ices  and expanding 
opportunit ies for  minorit ies,  women and disadvantaged individuals.   P er  Chapter  
17-1600 o f  the  P hi lade lphia  Co de,  Redeve lo per wi l l  be requi red to  subm it  an  
Eco no m ic  Oppo rtuni ty  P lan  ( "EOP ") .   P ro po sed EOP  go a l  ranges were subm itted 
at  MBE –  40% and WBE –  1 0%.     
 
 Redevelopment Commitment and Use:  Redeveloper commits to develop the 
Project and maintain the Premises,  including the Affordable Units,  for the durat ion 
of the Term.  As  required by  the proposed Redevelopment Agreement,  Redeveloper 
shal l  be required to submit plans,  show adequate evidence of funding for the 
Project,  provide a l ist  of al l  major executed contracts ,  obtain a l l  required permits  
and approvals,  provide adequate insurance for the Project ,  provide adequate 
f inancial  secur ity for the payment of  al l  contractors ,  promptly discharge a l l  l iens  
and provide as-built  p lans upon completion of the Project.    
 
 Fine Arts:  Redeveloper agrees to provide appropriate works of Fine Arts in  
accordance with The Percent for Art  Program in effect on the date of execution of  
the Redevelopment Agreement.  
 
 Insurance:  Redeveloper agrees to insure and to cause their respective 
contractors  and subtenants  to maintain the minimum insurance coverages as  
required by the Authority dur ing the term of the proposed Ground Lease and 
Redevelopment Agreement.  
 

Indemnification:  Redeveloper agrees to indemnify and defend the Authority,  the 
City and the Philadelphia Housing Development Corporat ion ("PHDC"),  and save 
each of them harmless from and against any and al l  c la ims, actions,  suits ,  
proceedings,  losses,  damages,  l iabi l it ies and expenses ar is ing during the term of 
the proposed Ground Lease and Redevelopment Agreement.  
 
 Sublett ing and Assignment:  Redeveloper is  prohibited from sublett ing or 
assigning any port ion of the Premises unless they satisfy an applicable minimum 
tangible net worth test as provided in the proposed Ground Lease.  Redeveloper  
may assign the proposed Ground Lease to a "Permitted Transferee" without the 
prior consent of the Authority provided that Redeveloper provides the Authority 
with notice of such assignment at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date 
thereof.   The term "Permitted Transferee" shal l  mean (a)  a Leasehold Mortgagee 
(as def ined in the Ground Lease);  or (b)  an ent ity that  (x)  owns, manages or has  
engaged a third party property manager that manages not less than one hundred 
f ifty (150) affordable rental  units in its  portfol io as of the effect ive date of the 
assignment;  and (y)  has,  together with its  aff i l iates,  a tangible net worth of at  least  
the "Appl icable Minimum Tangible Net Worth" as of the effective date of such 
assignment.  "Applicable Minimum Tangible Net Worth" means a  tangible  net  
worth of at  least F ifteen Mil l ion Dollars ($15,000,000.00).  
 
 Leasehold Mortgages:  Redeveloper may grant to certain parties (as l imited in 
the proposed Ground Lease) a mortgage l ien encumbering al l  or a portion of the 

Item II

25



   

Premises.  
 
 Right of First  Refusal  Option:  If  and when either ( i )  the Authority issues a 
proposal  to a  prospective purchaser  that  is  or could be unrelated to the Authority 
and which is  not a public  or government agency or authority (or an entity owned, 
control led and/or managed by a publ ic or government agency or authority)  
("Unrelated Third Party"),  or ( i i )  the Authority receives a bona f ide offer or request  
for proposal  that the Authority is  wil l ing to  accept,  from a prospective purchaser 
that is  an Unrelated Third Party,  to purchase and sel l  the fee interest  in  the 
Premises,  Redeveloper  shal l  have the right of  f irst  refusal  to purchase the Premises  
(the "ROFR Option").  
 
 Secur ity Deposit:  Redeveloper is  required to pay to the Authority a security  
deposit  in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000),  which has been paid prior  
to the date hereof.  Upon execution of the proposed Ground Lease, such deposit  wi l l  
become a "security  completion deposit ."   Upon issuance of  a Certif icate of  
Completion by the Authority this secur ity completion deposit  shal l  be repaid to 
Redeveloper.  
 

 
LEGAL  ENT IT Y/ OT HER PARTNERS  ( i f  appl i cable) :    
 

•  Kenneth  P enn 
•  Henry  Su l l i v an 
•  P eter  P e lu l lo  
•  Sa l  Ja l i l v and 
•  E l l io t  O ’Ne i l l  

 
 Mai l ing  Address :   2 50 1  Wharto n St reet ,  2 n d  F lo o r ,  P h i lade lphia ,  P A 19146 
 
 
PROPERT Y INFORMATI ON:    614-26  S .  13 t h  S t reet  inc luding  1306 -10  Kater   

S t reet  and 1309-13  Ba inbr idge  St reet    
 
Th is  parce l  was  adv ert i sed  thro ugh a  Request  fo r  P ro po sa ls  ( "RFP ")  
 

Descr ipt ion:   13,775  SF ,  v acant  lo t    Zoning :  RM-1    Use:   Res ident ia l   
 
 
F I NANCING: 
 

Redeve lo per  has  pro vided do cum entat io n  of  av a i lab le  funds o r  reaso nable  ab i l i ty  
to  o bta in  necessary  funds  in  an  amo unt  no less  than tota l  P ro ject  co sts .  
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

26



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
COMMENT S OR OT HER CONDI TI ONS :  

 
There  were  s ix  (6 )  pro po sa ls  subm it ted in  respo nse to  the  RFP  and Redev e lo per 
rece iv ed the  h ighest  sco re .   Redev e lo per i s  co m pl iant  wi th the  C i ty  Rev enue 
D epartm ent  and has  no  o utstanding  tax  o bl igat io ns ,  co nf l i ct s  o f  interest ,  o r  
unreso lved C i ty  L&I  Co de  v io lat io ns .  P er  Chapter  17 -1600  o f  the  P hi lade lphia  
Co de,  the  Eco nom ic  Oppo rtuni ty  P lan  wi l l  apply .  F ine  Arts  w i l l  a lso  apply .   
 

 
P ro po sed Reso lut io n  and suppo rt ing  info rm at io n are at tached (s i te  m ap,  so urces  
and uses ,  pro po sed p lans  and pho to graphs) .  
 
 
P repared by :  Br ian  Rom ano 
Rev iewed by :  Jess ie  Lawrence 

Item II

27



 
  
  
 
 
   

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING (i) THE SELECTION OF 624 S. 13TH STREET L.L.C. 
AS REDEVELOPER OF 614-26 S. 13th STREET, INCLUDING 1306-10 KATER STREET 
AND 1309-13 BAINBRIDGE STREET, LOCATED IN THE SOUTH CENTRAL 
REDEVELOPMENT AREA, SOUTH CENTRAL URBAN RENEWAL AREA, AND (ii) A 
GROUND LEASE WITH 624 S. 13TH STREET L.L.C., AS TENANT, FOR  614-26 S. 13th 
STREET, INCLUDING 1306-10 KATER STREET AND 1309-13 BAINBRIDGE STREET 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority 
("Authority"), that 624 S. 13th Street L.L.C. ("Redeveloper") is hereby selected as Redeveloper of 
614-26 S. 13th Street, including 1306-10 Kater Street and 1309-13 Bainbridge Street (collectively, the 
"Premises"), located in the South Central Redevelopment Area, South Central Urban Renewal Area, 
and approval is hereby given to the Redevelopment Agreement and the proposed method of 
disposition as set forth below and in the attached Fact Sheet; determining that the Redeveloper 
possesses the qualifications and financial resources necessary to develop the property in accordance 
with the Redeveloper's approved plans; further authorizing the execution, delivery and recording of 
the Redevelopment Contract for the property and the preparation of all other documentation necessary 
or desirable in order to carry out the foregoing, and to obtain the appropriate council action. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Premises shall be developed as a three (3) story building, 
totaling 33,000 gross square feet, which will include forty-five (45) apartments – the current unit mix 
being twelve (12) studio units, twenty-five (25) one bedroom units, and eight (8) two bedroom units 
(the "Project"). 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that Redeveloper shall continuously use the Premises for 
purposes of constructing, operating and maintaining the Project, of which a minimum of two (2) 
studio units, nine (9) one-bedroom units, and three (3) two-bedroom units (the "Affordable Units") 
shall be (i) leased/restricted to subtenants with household incomes not to exceed sixty percent (60%) 
of the area median income ("AMI") as determined by the United States Department of Housing and 
Urban Development ("HUD"), and (ii) shall be rented at levels that are affordable to households at 
sixty percent (60%) of AMI, based on such households spending no more than thirty percent (30%) 
of their adjusted gross income on housing costs. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Authority is authorized to enter into (i) a Redevelopment 
Agreement between the Authority and Redeveloper setting forth the development obligations relative 
to the Project, and (ii) a Ground Lease for the Premises between the Authority, as landlord, and 
Redeveloper, as tenant, providing for the use, operation and maintenance of the Premises and 
maintenance of the Project to be constructed pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement, for a term 
of ninety-nine (99) years and including such additional terms as set forth in the attached Fact Sheet. 
 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate is hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to perform any and all such acts and things, and to execute, 
acknowledge, deliver, file or record in any appropriate public offices, all ancillary agreements, 
documents, instruments and certifications as may be necessary or desirable in connection with 
accomplishing the purpose of this Resolution. 

Item II

28



   

 
 FURTHER RESOLVING, that the Deputy Executive Director of Real Estate, with the 
advice of General Counsel, may allow modifications to the Resolution necessary or desirable to carry 
out its purposes and intents.  

 
 

 

Item II

29



 
  
  
 
 
   

 

Item II

30



Item II

31



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

32



   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

33



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

34



   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

35



 
  
  
 
 
   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

36



   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

37



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

38



   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

39



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

40



   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

41



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

42



   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

43



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

44



   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

45



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

46



   

 

Item II

47



 
  
  
 
 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item II

48



   

 

Item II

49



Item II

50



Item II

51



Item II

52



Item II

53



Item II

54



Item II

55



Item II

56



Item II

57



Item II

58



Item II

59



Item II

60



Item II

61



Item II

62



Item II

63



Item II

64



From: Ravi Patel <rpatel387@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 7, 2021 2:23 PM 
To: Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov>; Kenyatta Johnson <Kenyatta.Johnson@Phila.gov> 
Subject: Preserve Park at 614 S 13th st 
 

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links 
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

 
Hello, 
 
We are homeowners and members of the community in Hawthorne directly affected by this proposal to 
build a large apartment building across from our home.  We feel strongly about preserving a Turtlebug 
Park in that parcel of land instead.  
 
Our community is a diverse residential area that thrives due to green spaces such as this one.  There is 
already plenty of mixed income housing in our neighborhood, and helping the existing community prosper 
should take precedence over allowing a real estate developer profit from building more. 
 
Just this morning I witnessed small children running along the grass in the park while their grandparents 
took pictures of them happily enjoying the little bit of green we have managed to preserve.   Please do not 
disappoint the majority of us actually calling this area home!  Save us from the extra noise, the extra 
pollution, and the excess developing that is already taking place in many areas of our city! 
 
Ravi 

 
 
 
  

Item II

65



From: James Zhiyan Ma <ma9@utexas.edu>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 14, 2021 5:44 PM 
To: Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov>; Kenyatta Johnson <Kenyatta.Johnson@Phila.gov> 
Subject: Conveyance of 614 s 13th st 
 

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links 
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

 
Hi Ryan and Kenyatta,  
 
I saw a flyer from someone opposing the conveyance of the vacant parcel at 614 s 13th st, which they 
refer to as "turtlebug park". As a homeowner of 614 s 12th st (one block away), I wanted to write that I 
support the development of the vacant lot and that the people who call it a park seem disingenuous to 
me. There is no park there and the vacant lot is an efficient use of that area. Happy holidays! 
 
Best,  
Zhiyan Ma 
 
 
 
 
  

Item II

66



From: Turtlebug                  <play@turtlebug.org>  
Sent: Thursday, December 16, 2021 8:16 AM 
To: Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov> 
Subject: “Loss is an event but gain is a process.” 
 
External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links or open 
attachments unless you recognize the sender. 
________________________________ 
 
Ryan, 
 
I’d also like to further express the importance of the Philadelphia Tree Canopy and the trees on the 614 
S. 13th Street parcel. Four of the Six trees are healthy Sugar Maples! The other two trees are a Black 
Locust and a Fox Glove Empress. The Maples are on the 2013 heritage tree list. 

 
 
 
 
  

Item II

67



From: Hannah Purbe <linneapurbe@gmail.com>  
Sent: Thursday, January 6, 2022 6:19 AM 
To: Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov> 
Subject: Support of 13th & Bainbridge  
 
External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links or open 
attachments unless you recognize the sender. 
________________________________ 
 
Dear Ryan - 
 
I have reviewed the presentation for the proposed development at 13th and Bainbridge, and as a 
resident of Hawthorne (Broad & Fitzwater) and near neighbor I am very much in support of the project. 
I'm looking forward to seeing it come to fruition! 
 
Best, Hanna Purbe 
267.918.4354 
 
 
 
Thank you! 
 
 
 
 
  

Item II

68



From: Trang Balchunas <trang.balchunas@gmail.com>  
Sent: Friday, January 7, 2022 12:14 PM 
To: Anne Fadullon <Anne.Fadullon@Phila.gov> 
Subject: 13 th and bainbridge project 
 
External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links or open 
attachments unless you recognize the sender. 
________________________________ 
 
Dear Anne, 
I live in Hawthorn and I oppose this project. I have seen neighbors fighting over parking and this project 
will make it worst. I have a special need child and the therapist can never find parking when she comes 
to the house. 
I would like to see this green space as public playground. 
Thank you 
Trang Balchunas 
 
 
 
  

Item II

69

mailto:trang.balchunas@gmail.com
mailto:Anne.Fadullon@Phila.gov


From: Ashish Patil <apatil121@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 10, 2022 10:45 AM 
To: Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov> 
Subject: 13th and Bainbridge lot - redevelopment project 
 

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links 
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

 
Hi Ryan,  
 
I want to thank you for helping lead a constructive conversation and hearing the community before a 
massive, permanent decision is made. It shows strong leadership on you and your team's part. 
 
I live at 619 South Clarion Street, my property touches the lot that is being proposed for redevelopment. 
 
I'm fairly new as a resident, I purchased that house in June 2020. The neighbors all around have been 
nothing short of great during this rough time in the pandemic.  
 
One of the really special attributes of this area is how diverse and eclectic the neighborhood is. I work in 
tech (creating new healthcare technology companies and products), diverse mindsets and backgrounds 
is such a key ingredient in creating great things. It's something truly special about Philly that is rare 
elsewhere (after living in the south and midwest). 
 
I feel the same about this neighborhood, the connection between everyone has the potential to be 
really special. I play basketball at 10th and bainbridge and you have games that cover almost every 
ethnicity and background. It's truly special when everyone comes together, we laugh and play and 
respect one another to whole new levels because we have the opportunity to interact.  
 
That's why I feel this RFP for this redevelopment project to create a building is not the right solution 
for that lot. The building is being touted as this beacon of 'affordable housing'. However there's clear 
evidence from people that would qualify for that pricing, that they would not be able to afford it and it 
wouldn't even have much of an impact for their lives. There was an article by NBC 10 how these 
affordable housing measures are not effectively implemented. I think we can think of something better 
that has a stronger long-term impact for the community and even the people that need additional 
financial support. 
 
The lot is safe, does not flood, and is used by many to enjoy and escape.  
 
The whole project feels short-term in thought, very transactional and being forced upon an entire 
community that does not want this to happen. I'm sure there are other locations where this building 
would be a better fit. 
 
This space can be made into something really special, if we come together and talk about how we can 
shape it into a space that brings the neighborhood together. A place where children (from all 
backgrounds) can play, be exposed to others that they may never have met. Think about how the 
pandemic has stunted the growth of children's ability to socialize. This lot can be a place of offsetting 
that, impacting lives in ways we wouldn't imagine.  
 

Item II

70

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nbcphiladelphia.com%2Finvestigators%2Fphilly-affordable-housing-plan-failed-to-help-home-buyers-it-was-meant-for%2F3096514%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cryan.harmon%40phdc.phila.gov%7Cb630cb854a574f2cd05808d9d45022f9%7C2046864f68ea497daf34a6629a6cd700%7C0%7C0%7C637774262925756066%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=lN4%2BuIi028Ukj5fitKvhOkYoKwIm0jYISlFDgbPZQ5o%3D&reserved=0


Also for people to come and relax -- the pandemic has left everyone traumatized. Another building 
doesn't help that. Open space and human connection definitely does. I'd even be willing to call upon my 
network in the Philly tech scene to put on events for teaching technology skills (coded by kids comes to 
mind) or even fun recruiting events at that lot. Teaching people about tech provides new revenue 
generating opportunities in today's world. 
 
I've worked in the space design area before for the Philadelphia coworking company Benjamin's Desk 
(now 76 Forward), we can be really intentional on what we do that encourages people to come and 
enjoy the space. Surrounding businesses will benefit in an increase in novel foot traffic (the whole area 
has been decimated because of the pandemic). Also there could be commercial opportunity to rent it 
out (something like Philadelphia Horticultural Society did with a pop up garden) which would bring 
people to the area that would then support surrounding businesses. I'm sure there's creative ways that 
the community values that can also help the city bring in revenue. 
 
I've attached some photos of the lot, look at it! Beautiful and it has so much more potential if we work 
together and take it in the direction that connects the community together. 
 
I leave you with one ask, please look inside yourself and ask "Am I opposed to canceling the project?" 
and work with the community to take the lot in a direction that supports the community? If the answer, 
is no (you are not opposed and are willing to cancel the current RFP), we can all work together to create 
something special, with your team being the champions that bring something the community adores. 
 
I thank you for your time and leadership, I hope we get an opportunity to work closely together to 
create a better Philadelphia. Go birds! 
 
Thank you 
 
Best, 
 
Ashish 
  

Item II

71

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcodedbykids.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cryan.harmon%40phdc.phila.gov%7Cb630cb854a574f2cd05808d9d45022f9%7C2046864f68ea497daf34a6629a6cd700%7C0%7C0%7C637774262925766011%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=ozMPk7urRf%2FYpdm9l%2BVJeYqtwMWPwP50GXvm%2BnKLOIM%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.76forward.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7Cryan.harmon%40phdc.phila.gov%7Cb630cb854a574f2cd05808d9d45022f9%7C2046864f68ea497daf34a6629a6cd700%7C0%7C0%7C637774262925766011%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=Xrg1qliLUCgaB8iBuBWtAdNdu1%2Bw5yxq7uTgzUkll7M%3D&reserved=0


From: Ashish Patil <apatil121@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 10, 2022 10:45 AM 
To: Anne Fadullon <Anne.Fadullon@Phila.gov> 
Subject: 13th and Bainbridge lot - redevelopment project 
 

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links 
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

 
Hi Anne,  
 
I want to thank you for leading a constructive conversation and hearing the community before a 
massive, permanent decision is made. It shows strong leadership on you and your team's part. In 

reading your online profile, I appreciate your focus on 'work[ing] with communities to promote, 

plan, preserve, and develop successful neighborhoods for all'. I think that aligns with us 

wanting the right long-term solutions for this neighborhood and city. 
 
I live at 619 South Clarion Street, my property touches the lot that is being proposed for redevelopment. 
 
I'm fairly new as a resident, I purchased that house in June 2020. The neighbors all around have been 
nothing short of great during this rough time in the pandemic.  
 
One of the really special attributes of this area is how diverse and eclectic the neighborhood is. I work in 
tech (creating new healthcare technology companies and products), diverse mindsets and backgrounds 
is such a key ingredient in creating great things. It's something truly special about Philly that is rare 
elsewhere (after living in the south and midwest). 
 
I feel the same about this neighborhood, the connection between everyone has the potential to be 
really special. I play basketball at 10th and bainbridge and you have games that cover almost every 
ethnicity and background. It's truly special when everyone comes together, we laugh and play and 
respect one another to whole new levels because we have the opportunity to interact.  
 
That's why I feel this RFP for this redevelopment project to create a building is not the right solution 
for that lot. The building is being touted as this beacon of 'affordable housing'. However there's clear 
evidence from people that would qualify for that pricing, that they would not be able to afford it and it 
wouldn't even have much of an impact for their lives. There was an article by NBC 10 how these 
affordable housing measures are not effectively implemented. I think we can think of something better 
that has a stronger long-term impact for the community and even the people that need additional 
financial support. 
 
The lot is safe, does not flood, and is used by many to enjoy and escape.  
 
The whole project feels short-term in thought, very transactional and being forced upon an entire 
community that does not want this to happen. I'm sure there are other locations where this building 
would be a better fit. 
 
This space can be made into something really special, if we come together and talk about how we can 
shape it into a space that brings the neighborhood together. A place where children (from all 
backgrounds) can play, be exposed to others that they may never have met. Think about how the 

Item II

72

mailto:apatil121@gmail.com
mailto:Anne.Fadullon@Phila.gov
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.nbcphiladelphia.com%2Finvestigators%2Fphilly-affordable-housing-plan-failed-to-help-home-buyers-it-was-meant-for%2F3096514%2F&data=04%7C01%7CRyan.Harmon%40phdc.phila.gov%7C19e53852dda04aea859308d9d450a246%7C2046864f68ea497daf34a6629a6cd700%7C0%7C0%7C637774265059843672%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=uTRWbILIcSLgufMMvhEltSERQP1OWtfDwP3sZ636XbY%3D&reserved=0


pandemic has stunted the growth of children's ability to socialize. This lot can be a place of offsetting 
that, impacting lives in ways we wouldn't imagine.  
 
Also for people to come and relax -- the pandemic has left everyone traumatized. Another building 
doesn't help that. Open space and human connection definitely does. I'd even be willing to call upon my 
network in the Philly tech scene to put on events for teaching technology skills (coded by kids comes to 
mind) or even fun recruiting events at that lot. Teaching people about tech provides new revenue 
generating opportunities in today's world. 
 
I've worked in the space design area before for the Philadelphia coworking company Benjamin's Desk 
(now 76 Forward), we can be really intentional on what we do that encourages people to come and 
enjoy the space. Surrounding businesses will benefit in an increase in novel foot traffic (the whole area 
has been decimated because of the pandemic). Also there could be commercial opportunity to rent it 
out (something like Philadelphia Horticultural Society did with a pop up garden) which would bring 
people to the area that would then support surrounding businesses. I'm sure there's creative ways that 
the community values that can also help the city bring in revenue. 
 
I've attached some photos of the lot, look at it! Beautiful and it has so much more potential if we work 
together and take it in the direction that connects the community together. 
 

 
 

Item II

73

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcodedbykids.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CRyan.Harmon%40phdc.phila.gov%7C19e53852dda04aea859308d9d450a246%7C2046864f68ea497daf34a6629a6cd700%7C0%7C0%7C637774265059853629%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=ZNTG9wdp9Zi2s0GSq46b%2Ftww36IRYcS2qruCALk8OJ8%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.76forward.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CRyan.Harmon%40phdc.phila.gov%7C19e53852dda04aea859308d9d450a246%7C2046864f68ea497daf34a6629a6cd700%7C0%7C0%7C637774265059853629%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000&sdata=RjkFr8SuJtbFp9%2Fs5rzZcYMgYNgQlwuVRch%2Fq1XTzTk%3D&reserved=0


 
 
I leave you with one ask, please look inside yourself and ask "Am I opposed to canceling the project?" 
and work with the community to take the lot in a direction that supports the community? If the answer, 
is no (you are not opposed and are willing to cancel the current RFP), we can all work together to create 
something special, with your team being the champions that bring something the community adores. 
 
I thank you for your time and leadership, I hope we get an opportunity to work closely together to 
create a better Philadelphia. Go birds! 
 
Thank you 
 
Best, 
 
Ashish 
  

Item II

74



Thomas J. Copestick 
Richard D. Dickson, Jr. 

627 S. 13th Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19147 

 
January 10, 2022 
 
Anne Fadullon, Chair 
Ryan Harmon, General Counsel 
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority 
 
Via email:  Anne.Fadullon@phila.gov 
  Ryan.Harmon@pra.phila.gov 
 
We write in support of the proposed development of the lot at 13th & Bainbridge Streets. We 
have lived directly across the street from this site for 12 years and have consistently advocated 
for its development. Until just over a year ago, when the parcel was prepared for development, 
it was a blight on the community. 
 
The proposed development will provide much needed mixed income housing and bring life to 
that corner. The overall design is respectful of the scale of the surrounding homes. We hope to 
engage with the developer as the design is finalized to ensure it compliments the community 
and minimize the impact of construction and support activities such as trash removal after 
completion. 
 
While we fully support the project, it is important to note that we believe the process used was 
deeply flawed. The community had no input on the requirements of the RFP, was not involved 
in the review process and was presented with a fait accompli for approval. The developer did 
not meet with the community until after the RDA Board meeting where the proposal was 
expected to be approved. We request that, as part of the approval, that the developer be 
required to establish a mechanism for regular communication with the community to discuss 
issues regarding final design, construction, maintenance, and operation of the facility, 
consistent with the terms of the approved contract. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Thomas J. Copestick    Richard D. Dickson, Jr. 
   
  

Item II

75

mailto:Anne.Fadullon@phila.gov
mailto:Ryan.Harmon@pra.phila.gov


From: Gary Risler <risler.g@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 28, 2021 7:10 PM 
To: Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov> 
Subject: Benchmark Development -624 S. 13th Street 
 

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links 
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

 
Mr. Harmon,  
 
I am purchasing 1303 Kater Street in January of 2022.  The aforementioned project will be built directly 
across the street from my new home.  I have seen the renderings and of the opinion that this will be a 
wonderful addition to the neighborhood. 
 
Happy Healthy New Year to you and yours! 
 
Sincerely, 
Gary Risler 
 
Gary E. Risler 
risler.g@gmail.com 
215-669-0944 
This is my personal email.   
 
 
 
  

Item II

76

mailto:risler.g@gmail.com


From: Gerald Wells <g.wells@ritascorp.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 3, 2022 7:36 PM 
To: Kenn Penn <kpenn@benchmarkcg.net> 
Cc: Elliot Oneill <eoneill@benchmarkcg.net> 
Subject: The Parker  
 
Mr. Penn, 
   I live on Banbridge near your proposed project.  You may have heard me voice support for the project 
at the last meeting.  I am the President of the Kater Court Homeowners association and our 
development supports the project that will enhance the area.  I plan on attending the HEC meeting on 
Thursday and I will continue to voice my support.  I will give you one comment to consider.  It seems odd 
to have the one full brick side not be on the entrance side.  Most buildings use the most expensive and 
beautiful materials on the front of the building where the entrance is.  Just something for you to 
consider.  Regards.     
 
 
 
  

Item II

77

mailto:g.wells@ritascorp.com
mailto:kpenn@benchmarkcg.net
mailto:eoneill@benchmarkcg.net


4 January 2022 

 

Mr. Ryan Harmon, 

  

I am a resident of the Hawthorne community and live the 1100 block of Bainbridge 

street.  As a participant at the virtual meeting a couple of weeks ago, I plan to 

attend the upcoming community meeting with the developer this week. 

  

As a longtime resident, I have seen a numerous of changes in the community, that 

span the spectrum of both positive and challenging outcomes. 

  

The proposed plan for 13th and Bainbridge is one of the most thoughtful and 

inclusive plans that has been presented for this community and I am fully in 

support of this proposal, with continued sensitively to balanced inclusion of 

ethnicity affected by gentrification. 

  

Thank you, 

Marline Paramour 

mparamour@ccp.edu 
 
 
 
 
  

Item II

78



From: posg70 <posg70@gmail.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 10, 2022 2:41 PM 
To: Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov> 
Subject: 13th Bainbridge Street 
 

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links 
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

 
 
 
 
I opposed the building on 13th and Bainbridge Street. 
 
We keep building in the area pushing out public place and not putting in parking. 
 
Patricia O Green  
1209 Clymer Street  
Philadelphia, PA  19147 
 
 
 
 
  

Item II

79



From: Rebecca Collins <rebeccarcollins@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 11, 2022 9:53 AM 
To: Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov> 
Subject: 614 S. 13th Street - letter of opposition 
 

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links 
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

 
Mr. Harmon:  
 
I am writing to express my strong objection to the development of multiple lots at 614 S 13th Street.  
 
Over the past decade Philadelphia has lost 6% of its tree canopy and extreme heat events have become 
more frequent as a result of climate change. Additionally, increased precipitation has further strained 
our infrastructure and cost the city and its tax payers millions of dollars. Now is not the time to develop 
a lot that according to city records saw no development as late as 1962.  
 
We need to prioritize open green community spaces and focus on repairing the blighted properties, not 
building more new developments under the veil of affordable housing.  
 
In order for Philadelphia to thrive we need to preserve the assets that we have for future generations. 
As a resident and active community member that has enjoyed this space since moving here in 2012, I 
urge you to preserve this parcel and hand it back to the community.  
 
Rebecca Collins  
1020 Fitzwater St, Philadelphia, PA 19147 
 
 
 
  

Item II

80



From: Diana Pesek <diana.pesek@gmail.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, January 11, 2022 10:03 AM 
To: Anne Fadullon <Anne.Fadullon@Phila.gov>; Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov> 
Subject: 13th and Bainbridge  
 

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links 
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

 
Dear Anne and Ryan,  
 
Please allow me to introduce myself as a resident of 1352 South St. I’m writing in opposition to the 
submitted proposal to develop the empty lots at 13th and Bainbridge because there will be no included 
off street parking and very little green space. 
 
I know leaving the lots undeveloped invites trash and possible drug use. I’ve lived in the neighborhood 
for over five years and  see the lots transform from trash and drop havens to a nice outdoor space 
maintained by people who use the areas. 
 
I love seeing the “little humans” from the daycare playing and learning. They help keep the area litter 
free and pick up or point out pieces of glass and other debris.   
 
Ideally, I would like to see this area preserved as open, green space that is maintained by responsible 
people and not left to chance. Or, I would like to see part of the lots developed that include off street 
parking and a larger green space that will be maintained by the developed property management. I love 
to walk around the city and am saddened by how many open lots have been developed, leaving no open 
green lots.  
 
I hope you will consider either keeping this area completely open or asking the developer of the current 
proposal to revise his plan too include off street parking and more open green space. 
 
Thank you for allowing me to voice my opinion. 
 
1352 South St. Unit 205 
Philadelphia, PA 19147 
diana.pesek@gmail.com 
 
 
 
  

Item II

81

mailto:diana.pesek@gmail.com


From: Bea Smith 
Sent: Tuesday, January 11, 2022 3:25 PM 
To: anne.fadullon@phila.gov <anne.fadullon@phila.gov>; ryan.harmon@phdc.phila.go 
<ryan.harmon@phdc.phila.go> 
Subject: 1309-13 Bainbridge Street Development  
  

Dear Ms. Fadullon and Mr. Harmon: 
 
I live directly across from the lot to be developed and am writing opposing the erection of a 45-
unit complex, "The Parker" as named by Benchmark, in already heavily populated 
area.  Affordable housing is needed. It is how I came to obtain my house by purchasing it 
through the Philadelphia Housings Authority 15 years ago. Since that time so much 
development has happened in this area that it has become suffocating. More housing is being 
built at the top of Bainbridge Street at Broad Street. That will add 50 units with no off-street 
parking. Adding at a minimum another 50 residents, possibly with cars.  There are the houses 
built on the west side of Broad Street between Fitzwater and Bainbridge. Now the monstrosity 
being built on the lot on the east side of Broad Street and Washington Avenue across from 
another complex, Lincoln Square, that is not fully occupied and diagonal from the Marine Club 
apartments. There are several reasons I oppose the development. Parking will be more than 
impossible in an already saturated area. Additional trash from the complex is a concern. 
Apartments do not promote stability. As rents rise, people move. Property values suffer when 
there is consent turn-over in the neighborhood. If units are vacant that is an invitation for 
vandalism and vagrancy.  
  
My main opposition to the complex is the elimination of green space in the area. That lot 
provides a respite for many residents in the area. Many people walk by that lot going to work 
and home, on the way to stores on South Street, and to restaurants up 13th Street.  Seeing that 
open space and trees allows the mind to decompress. Being able to stand in front of that lot 
and take deep breathes breaks the stress of a difficult day or allows one to escape the city for a 
few moments and take in nature.  
 
During the various Zoom meeting, some residents expressed support for the development. 
They cited vagrancy, the lot being overgrown and general unsightliness. Yes, at one time the lot 
was overgrown. The residents complained to the City constantly about the upkeep of the lot. 
The lot was overgrown because a high chain-link fence surrounded the lot and there was not 
any way to access it without a key. When the fence was removed and the shrubs were cut 
down, this allowed access for residents to maintain the lot. As for people hanging out in the lot 
is totally untrue. The men from Ready, Willing and Able sometimes smoke at that corner. They 
pose no threat or cause problems. Ready, Willing and Able participates in the maintenance of 
the area. For the 15 years that I have lived here, there has never been any lingering by vagrants 
on the lot. The neighbors are good about maintaining this neighborhood and reporting anything 
thing that is awry. We have been wanting to preserve that lot since our homes were built.  
. 

Item II

82

mailto:anne.fadullon@phila.gov
mailto:anne.fadullon@phila.gov
mailto:ryan.harmon@phdc.phila.go
mailto:ryan.harmon@phdc.phila.go


I participated in the last meeting with Benchmark and processed some things that were said. 
Mr. Sullivan stated that because development is close to public transportation the residence 
will not have cars because they will be within walking distance to work. That statement cannot 
be substantiated. While it is true some people who live in the city don't have cars, the blanket 
statement that the residents won't have cars is not true. It cannot be assumed that everyone 
that moves into The Parker will work in Center City. I worked in Delaware for years. Most times 
I used public transportation but there were times I had to drive. Also, I have an elderly mother. I 
use my car to assist her with errands. Neighbors have children that participate in activities. A 
car is necessary to transport kids around.  
 
A rendition of the building was presented.  On the northwest corner of the building, a "parklet" 
is planned. It is an indentation for a sitting area with the building overhang serving as a canopy. 
My concern with the parklet is that it will attract homeless to encamp. I walk my dog towards 
Broad Street. There are many times I have come across homeless people sleeping under the 
carve outs in the 777 Apartments. Recently, I saw a man sleeping in doorway for the KinderCare 
at Broad and Fitzwater Streets in the 777 Apartments. Any SEPTA bus shelter on Broad Street 
serves as residence for the homeless. I fear the parklet will be another shelter from the 
elements for those without adequate housing.   
 
I brought up the labor and material cost for the building. The pandemic has caused the 
tightening of the labor market and the supply chain glitch caused a supply backlog. Shortages 
cause rise in prices. Benchmark will have to pay more for labor and materials. That cost will be 
passed rolled into the apartment rents. Mr. Penn stated that the state set pricing for costs and 
they will absorb the overrun. I don't believe that. If Benchmark absorbs cost overrun that 
means the quality of materials is sacrificed. The purposed of a developer is to make money not 
lose it. The city just had a 13 people die in a fire. In New York at least 19 people died in an 
apartment fire.  
 
Thirty-percent of the apartments set aside are for affordable housing. The AMI for Hawthorne 
ranges from $94,500 to $100,00. Using the lesser figure, $56,700 is the minimum salary at 100% 
of $94,500. Using 80% of the AMI drops to $75,600. A salary of $45,360 is 60% of $75,600. The 
rents for the apartments are projected between $900 to $1,600 a month. Those figures are 
substantial. 
Someone making $45,360 a year brings home about $27,000. Rent, utilities, and groceries will 
consume most of the monthly income. That is not factoring in incidentals and emergencies. All 
those previous items go up every year. Salaries do not keep up with inflation. What happens if 
qualified renters for the "affordable housing" are not found? Will those apartments remain 
empty or will a variance be issued to bypass the affordable aspect in order to fill the units? 
 
We were told the timeline for construction will be 14-18 months. We were also told that the 
street would not be blocked. How is that possible? Connections the city sewage line, water 
lines, gas lines, electric lines and truck lines must run. All that digging will cause something to 
be closed for some time.  We were also told that trees would be planted. The new trees will not 
have to same character as those on the lot now.   

Item II

83



 
I have always appreciated that lot even when it was overgrown. Since the pandemic, I have 
been working from home and I look forward to looking out of my window and seeing the 
daylight and the majestic trees. If development goes forward, all my neighbors and I will get is a 
view of someone's window.  
 
An open space common area is planned for the center of building. Please don't sacrifice the 
open space common area of the thousands who and live and work in the area for the benefit of 
45-90 potential renters.  Less is definitely more in this case.  
 
SAVE OPEN SPACE! 
 
Most sincerely, 
 
Beatrice R. Smith 
Hawthorne homeowner 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Item II

84



From: MARK CARTELLA <mark.cartella@comcast.net>  
Sent: Thursday, January 13, 2022 4:35 PM 
To: Ryan Harmon <Ryan.Harmon@phdc.phila.gov> 
Subject: 13th and Brainbridge 
 

External Email Notice. This email comes from outside of City government. Do not click on links 
or open attachments unless you recognize the sender. 

 
Dear Ryan,   
 
As a long term owner in MLK HOA I would like to state my support for the proposed 
project at the corner of 13th and Bainbridge. I am aware that the board does not support 
the project and would like the current status of the lot to remain unchanged. I 
understand there are some that have made efforts to clean up the lot, but the fact is it 
remains a trash strewn eye sore that is a welcome space for vagrants. With no formal 
supervision of the lot I’m afraid its condition could further deteriorate. Additionally, I’d 
like to state that in my opinion parking concerns are grossly overstated – the majority of 
residents in MLK HOA have deeded off street parking. These concerns coupled with the 
obvious need for  
affordable housing have led me to be fully supportive of the project as I suspect many 
less vocal members of the MLK HOA are as well.  
 
 
Mark Cartella  
MLK HOA Property Owner   
 
 
 
 
  

Item II

85



 

Item II

86



To the Members of the Redevelopment Authority:

The Hawthorne Empowerment Coalition (HEC), the RCO for Hawthorne, is urging you to delay the transfer of the lot at 13th and 
Bainbridge.  After several neighborhood meetings and a meeting with the developers, we have concluded that the RDA board has 
failed to consider the other developments in Hawthorne.  Specifically, RDA failed to consider how the two recent projects, 13th and 
Bainbridge and Broad and Bainbridge, together would affect our neighborhood. HEC also believes the RDA board failed to consider 
the City’s inability to enforce the affordability requirement at other projects, as outlined in the recent NBC 10 report:

https://www.nbcphiladelphia.com/investigators/philly-affordable-housing-plan-failed-to-help-home-buyers-it-was-meant-
for/3096514/

This is not to suggest that we are unhappy with the proposed developers. They were generous with their time and made a 
presentation to our meeting. Nor is to suggest that we are unhappy with the concept of “mixed housing” ensuring that at least some of 
the units are affordable.

What we are concerned about is how adding so many units at one time, without any parking and with escalating rents will impact our 
neighborhood. There are those who believe that the people renting and/or buying in newer developments will not own cars. That 
has not been our experience.  We believe many of the people moving into our neighborhood have cars, just no parking 
spaces. This creates an unmet demand that can lead to frustration and unpleasant interactions. Having the two developments on 
the same block adding hundreds of new residents without adding parking spaces, is too great a risk to our quality of life. HEC wishes 
to see the impact of the building at Broad and Bainbridge before any other development in Hawthorne is allowed by the RDA.

Escalating rents concern us because we believe the city appraisers consider those rents and new purchases when assessing our 
tax burdens. It remains surprising to us that the City doesn’t realize that new construction, with higher prices, drives up our taxes 
and forces out longer-time residents, who have helped to stabilize and improve the neighborhood. No one who spends their time 
improving their neighborhood should be forced out by rising property taxes. 

In addition, based on the recent news report, HEC has lost faith in the City’s ability to ensure that affordable housing is used to help 
working people, as opposed to helping speculators “game the system”. No doubt the investigation announced by Angel Rodriquez, 
the Vice President of the Philadelphia Housing and Development Corporation, will develop better oversight. But until the 
investigation is finished and checks and balances are developed, we can have no faith that any proposed project with affordable 
housing will live up to its promise.

In closing, we urge you to postpone the transfer of the property. Give Hawthorne an opportunity to absorb and learn from the 
development at Broad and Bainbridge. Give the City the time it needs to ensure that affordable housing programs are used for 
affordable housing, not to reward speculators.

For the HEC Board,

Albert Hicks Jr. (Acting President)

Item II

87



To the Members of the Redevelopment Authority:

The Hawthorne Empowerment Coalition (HEC), the RCO for Hawthorne, is urging you to delay the transfer of the lot at 13th and 
Bainbridge.  After several neighborhood meetings and a meeting with the developers, we have concluded that the RDA board has 
failed to consider the other developments in Hawthorne.  Specifically, RDA failed to consider how the two recent projects, 13th and 
Bainbridge and Broad and Bainbridge, together would affect our neighborhood. HEC also believes the RDA board failed to consider 
the City’s inability to enforce the affordability requirement at other projects, as outlined in the recent NBC 10 report:

https://www.nbcphiladelphia.com/investigators/philly-affordable-housing-plan-failed-to-help-home-buyers-it-was-meant-
for/3096514/

This is not to suggest that we are unhappy with the proposed developers. They were generous with their time and made a 
presentation to our meeting. Nor is to suggest that we are unhappy with the concept of “mixed housing” ensuring that at least some of 
the units are affordable.

What we are concerned about is how adding so many units at one time, without any parking and with escalating rents will impact our 
neighborhood. There are those who believe that the people renting and/or buying in newer developments will not own cars. That 
has not been our experience.  We believe many of the people moving into our neighborhood have cars, just no parking 
spaces. This creates an unmet demand that can lead to frustration and unpleasant interactions. Having the two developments on 
the same block adding hundreds of new residents without adding parking spaces, is too great a risk to our quality of life. HEC wishes 
to see the impact of the building at Broad and Bainbridge before any other development in Hawthorne is allowed by the RDA.

Escalating rents concern us because we believe the city appraisers consider those rents and new purchases when assessing our 
tax burdens. It remains surprising to us that the City doesn’t realize that new construction, with higher prices, drives up our taxes 
and forces out longer-time residents, who have helped to stabilize and improve the neighborhood. No one who spends their time 
improving their neighborhood should be forced out by rising property taxes. 

In addition, based on the recent news report, HEC has lost faith in the City’s ability to ensure that affordable housing is used to help 
working people, as opposed to helping speculators “game the system”. No doubt the investigation announced by Angel Rodriquez, 
the Vice President of the Philadelphia Housing and Development Corporation, will develop better oversight. But until the 
investigation is finished and checks and balances are developed, we can have no faith that any proposed project with affordable 
housing will live up to its promise.

In closing, we urge you to postpone the transfer of the property. Give Hawthorne an opportunity to absorb and learn from the 
development at Broad and Bainbridge. Give the City the time it needs to ensure that affordable housing programs are used for 
affordable housing, not to reward speculators.

For the HEC Board,

Albert Hicks Jr. (Acting President)

Item II

88



To Whom it May Concern, 

 

 This letter is to provide an update from MLK Plaza HOA regarding the consensus findings from 

the community meeting held with Benchmark Construction on 1/6/22 regarding the lot proposal at 13
th
 

and Bainbridge St.  The 109 townhome owners of MLK Plaza HOA are the closest tenured Hawthorne 

homeowners to this project.  They are the ones who will be most impacted by any project happening on 

this parcel.   

 The meeting exposed clear majority opposition to this project moving forward as proposed.  The 

lack of parking and elimination of green space combined with adding only 13.5 AMI adjusted units were 

issues of concern.  Additionally, the developer was poorly informed on policies surrounding smoking 

issues that would make it impossible for residents to maintain code distance from the proposed 

Bainbridge St entrance and the commercial restaurant at the intersection of Clarion and Bainbridge St, 

thus creating a smoking corner on a heavily foot-trafficked area of 13
th
 and Bainbridge St.  The developer 

stated anecdotal information to justify not adding parking while previously admitting in a phone 

conversation to MLK HOA that adding parking creates a financial barrier for a project that is a rental unit 

on a ground lease.  Lastly, major concerns were raised for the RFP asking for an apartment unit complex 

to be placed in the middle of a townhome neighborhood when there is currently a 54 apartment rental 

unit building under construction in Hawthorne on the same block at Broad and Bainbridge St.  

https://phillyyimby.com/2021/10/construction-advances-at-broad-street-flats-at-701-south-broad-street-

in-hawthorne-south-philadelphia.html 

 Together, these concerns created a clear consensus that this project as proposed by Benchmark, 

does not add value to our Hawthorne community.  This project instead eliminates green space, increases 

common apartment rental units, and decreases parking availability.  Given that this lot is currently well 

maintained and is the only green space moving Northwest until reaching Rittenhouse square, the 

community organization asks that the RFP be revoked so that we can mutually find a more equitable 

proposal that can be addressed to align with the community needs of Hawthorne, which may include a 

more hybrid model that maintains green space while offering AMI rated homes for ownership that are 

more representative to the population of our working class Hawthorne community.  MLK Plaza HOA 

strongly opposes this project from moving forward. 

 

Sincerely, 

MLK PLAZA HOA Board 

 

Item II

89

https://phillyyimby.com/2021/10/construction-advances-at-broad-street-flats-at-701-south-broad-street-in-hawthorne-south-philadelphia.html
https://phillyyimby.com/2021/10/construction-advances-at-broad-street-flats-at-701-south-broad-street-in-hawthorne-south-philadelphia.html

	PRA Board Agenda 02-9-2022
	02-9-2022 PRA Board Agenda
	PHILADELPHIA REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
	PHILADELPHIA, PA  19107
	BOARD MEETING
	WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2022
	A G E N D A




	01-12-2022 Minutes
	01-12-2022 Minutes
	01-12-2022 Minutes
	01-12-2022 Minutes
	BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	None.
	ROLL CALL

	UEXHIBIT "A"
	1PUstUPU Council District Properties
	731 Mercy Street
	2PUndUPU Council District Properties
	1537 S. Lambert Street
	1514 S. Opal Street
	1520 S. Opal Street
	3036 Titan Street
	2008 Wilder Street
	1306 S. 28th Street
	3PUrdUPU Council District Properties
	5PUthUPU Council District Properties
	1403 N. 17PthP Street
	1409 N. 17PthP Street
	1412 N. 17PthP Street
	1415 N. 17PthP Street
	1416 N. 17PthP Street
	1421 N. 17PthP Street
	1435 N. 17PthP Street
	1441 N. 17PthP Street
	1624 Jefferson Street
	8PUthUPU Council District Properties
	4635 Germantown Avenue


	Copy of PRA_Attendance_Jan122022
	83315117099 - Attendee Report

	Copy of PRA_QA_Jan122022
	83315117099 - Q&A Report


	01-12-2022 Board Fact Sheets
	12-08-2021 Minutes
	12-08-2021 Minutes
	12-08-2021 Minutes
	12-08-2021 Board Fact Sheets
	12-08-2021 PRA Board Agenda
	11-10-2021 Board Minutes
	11-10-2021 Board Fact Sheets
	Board Items
	Item IIc (Yorktown Arms Preservation Development)
	Item IIc_Site Plan- Yorktown Arms Preservation Development
	Sheets
	A-00.5 - SITE PLAN










	12-08-2021 Board Fact Sheets
	12-08-2021 PRA Board Agenda
	11-10-2021 Board Minutes
	11-10-2021 Board Fact Sheets
	Board Items
	Item IIc (Yorktown Arms Preservation Development)
	Item IIc_Site Plan- Yorktown Arms Preservation Development
	Sheets
	A-00.5 - SITE PLAN









	Board Items
	Board Items
	Item Ia (Appointment Board of Directors RT HeadHouse)
	Item Ia_FS (Appointing Directors to RT HH Dev. Corp. (Jan. 2022) (REVISED)

	Item Ib (3rd Amendment Cooperation Agreement 400 N. Broad Street)
	Item Ib_FS (Third Amendment to City Cooperation Agreement - 400 N. Broad Street)

	Item Ic (Grant Agreement with PHA)
	Item Ic_FS (PHA - CHOICE Grant Agreement 2022)

	Item Id (Conveyance of City Properties to PLB)
	Item Id_FS (Transfer of City Property through PRA to PLB
	UEXHIBIT "A"
	1PUstUPU Council District Properties
	731 Mercy Street
	2PUndUPU Council District Properties
	1537 S. Lambert Street
	1514 S. Opal Street
	1520 S. Opal Street
	3036 Titan Street
	2008 Wilder Street
	1306 S. 28th Street
	3PUrdUPU Council District Properties
	5PUthUPU Council District Properties
	1403 N. 17PthP Street
	1409 N. 17PthP Street
	1412 N. 17PthP Street
	1415 N. 17PthP Street
	1416 N. 17PthP Street
	1421 N. 17PthP Street
	1435 N. 17PthP Street
	1441 N. 17PthP Street
	1624 Jefferson Street
	8PUthUPU Council District Properties
	4635 Germantown Avenue


	Item Ie (Conveyance of PRA to PLB)
	Item Ie_FS (Transfer PRA Properties to PLB)


	Item IIa (46 S. 44th Street - 4644 South LP  COC)
	Item IIa_FS (46 S. 44th Street_4644 South L.P. - COC)

	Item IIb (Blue Truck Enterprises LLC_2476 & 2478 Jasper Street - COC)
	Item IIb_FS (Certificate of Completion - 2476 Jasper Street and 2478 Jasper Street)




	Board Items
	Item Ia (Conveyance of Public Properties to LB)
	Item Ia_FS (Conveyance of City Properties)
	UEXHIBIT “A”
	1PUstUPU Council District Property
	2022 E. Fletcher Street
	5PUthUPU Council District Properties
	2453 N. Carlisle Street
	1532 N. Marston Street
	719 Montgomery Avenue
	737 Montgomery Avenue
	739 Montgomery Avenue
	741 Montgomery Avenue
	743 Montgomery Avenue
	1433 N. Myrtlewood Street
	1454 N. Myrtlewood Street
	1428 N. Myrtlewood Street
	1443 N. Myrtlewood Street
	3013 W. York Street
	3015 W. York Street
	3108 W. York Street
	2408 N. 31st Street
	2410 N. 31st Street
	2412 N. 31st Street

	Item Ia_Res (Conveyance of City Properties)
	RESOLUTION NO.
	UEXHIBIT "A"
	1PUstUPU Council District Property
	2022 E. Fletcher Street
	5PUthUPU Council District Properties
	2453 N. Carlisle Street
	1532 N. Marston Street
	719 Montgomery Avenue
	737 Montgomery Avenue
	739 Montgomery Avenue
	741 Montgomery Avenue
	743 Montgomery Avenue
	1433 N. Myrtlewood Street
	1454 N. Myrtlewood Street
	1428 N. Myrtlewood Street
	1443 N. Myrtlewood Street
	3013 W. York Street
	3015 W. York Street
	3108 W. York Street
	2408 N. 31st Street
	2410 N. 31st Street
	2412 N. 31st Street


	Item Ib (Conveyance PRA Properties to LB)
	Item Ib_FS (Conveyance of PRA Properties to PLB)
	5PUthUPU Council District Properties

	Item Ib_Res (Conveyance of PRA Properties to PLB)
	RESOLUTION NO.
	5PUthUPU Council District Properties


	Item Ic_FS (Home Repair Program - PSA with Republic Bank and Amendment to Resolution 2018-56) (February 2022)
	Item Ic_FS (Home Repair Program - PSA with Republic Bank and Amendment to Resolution 2018-56) (February 2022)
	Item Ic_Res (Home Repair Program - PSA with Republic Bank and Amendment to Resolution 2018-56) (February 2022)
	WHEREAS, the program titled "Restore, Repair, Renew: Philadelphia Neighborhood Home Preservation Loan Program" (the "Program") is an initiative of the City of Philadelphia (the "City") that will be administered by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Author...
	WHEREAS, the Program will be funded with proceeds from one or more bonds issued by the Authority as previously authorized by City Council Bill No. 170878, which was passed by City Council on November 30, 2017 (the "Program Ordinance");


	Item Id (Gallery Mall Project - 1st Amendment)
	Item Id_FS Gallery Project (2022 Bridge License for Pedestrian Bridge)
	Item Id_Res Gallery Project (2022 Bridge License for Pedestrian Bridge)
	RESOLUTION NO.


	Item II (13th & Bainbridge Project)
	Item II (13th & Bainbridge Project)
	Item II_FS - Ground Lease and Redevelopment Agreement with 624 S. 13th Street L.L.C. (2022)
	Item II_Res - Ground Lease and Redevelopment Agreement with 624 S. 13th Street L.L.C. (2022)
	Item II_Attachments- Ground Lease and Redevelopment Agreement with 624 S. 13th Street L.L.C. (2022)

	Correspondence Bainbridge Street
	Additional Support and Opposition Letters from December 2021 and 2022
	HEC 13th and Bainbridge Letter 1-11-22
	HEC Letter 1-10-22
	Letter to PHDC from MLK Plaza HOA (13th and Bainbridge Lot)





